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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B It 22

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

F AR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-ZA=+—HLEFE

2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-/\f —F—tF =—FT—XF =—E-EHF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FHE T FHE T
Revenue U A 163,629 125,846 110,467 128,030
Profit before taxation B A% AT 4 A 18,302 28,734 21,281 24,885
Income tax expenses FriS i X (5.721) (5,330) (3,578) (4,169)
Profit for the year F N A 12,581 23,404 17,703 20,716
Profit attributable to equity RN FE R R
shareholders of the Company FEAL 52 A 12,581 23,404 17,703 20,716
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NE —ZT—+tF —ET—RF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
Current assets MENEE 176,066 86,530 57,461 67,652
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,012 1,592 3,865 2,435
Current liabilities mEBaE 16,213 39,409 35,382 35,769
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 259 536 1,171 1,621
Net assets BEFE 160,606 48,177 24,773 32,697
Total equity attributable to PN Eay
equity shareholders JEfL R 42 5E
of the Company 160,606 48,177 24,773 32,697
Total equity BT 160,606 48,177 24,773 32,697
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Man Shun Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year” or “2018 Financial Year").

2018 marked a major milestone for the development of the Group
as the Group was successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
July 2018, giving it more confidence in its business prospects and
competitive advantages. The listing not only enhanced the Group’s
corporate image and governance transparency, but also enabled
the Group to make a successful move into the international capital
market, which offered the Group a broader space for growth in the
future.

The Group is an established HVAC E&M engineering services
provider in Hong Kong with a long business history dating back
to 1996. The Group generally focuses on servicing new residential
property development projects in Hong Kong.

To further consolidate its market position and corporate reputation
and to increase shareholder value, the Group will, after the listing,
step up its financial and licensing management, internal control
and corporate governance. Moreover, to maintain stable business
growth, the Group will strive to keep up relationships with its
suppliers and existing customers and actively explore potential
development opportunities, which in turn will enhance the Group’s
future profitability and scale for maximizing returns for shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to reinforce its human
resources and focus on personnel training so as to build a team with
outstanding talents. Moreover, the Group will continue to improve
the management of business plans and budgets, and enhance the
capabilities for executing plans and controlling budgets so as to
further raise its management standards, which will deliver stable
and sustainable development to the Group. With confidence in
the industry, the Group believes it will reap satisfactory results
and become the preferred choice of heat, ventilation and air-
conditioning systems E&M engineering services provider for property
developers in Hong Kong.

Finally, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all the
Directors, management team and all staff for their diligence over
the past year, and to the Company’s shareholders and partners from
various sectors for their ongoing great support.

Cheung Yuen Tung
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBRImR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an established HVAC E&M engineering services
provider in Hong Kong with a long business history dating back to
1996. The Group generally focus on serving new residential property
developments projects as a first-tier or second-tier subcontractor in
Hong Kong. The HVAC E&M engineering services typically involve
installation of HVAC systems, which refers to heat, ventilation and
air-conditioning systems.

The Group is registered as a Registered Electrical Contractor under
EMSD, a minor works contractor (company) of Type A (Classes Il
and Ill), Type D (Classes Il and Ill) and Type E (Classes Il and Ill) under
the Building Authority and a registered subcontractor under the
Subcontractor Registration Scheme operated by the Construction
Industry Council.

In order to strengthen the market position as a prime HVAC E&M
engineering services provider and become the preferred choice
of first-tier HYAC E&M engineering subcontractor for property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group continues to strengthen the
financial management and licensing qualifications, securing the
positioning in the property development value chain and acquiring
new business opportunities directly with property developers and/or
their designated main contractors.

On 11 July 2018, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing”). With a widening financing platform, the Group
can have more financing channels to raise funds to fulfil capital
needs. The Listing also enhances the Group’s market position and
further strengthens the Group's reputation in the industry, which
in turn helps maintaining the existing business relationship with the
network of suppliers and customers and exploring potential business
opportunities with new suppliers and customers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
By type of services:

Bt %5 o
A

WRFGRRILE ) -

Year ended 31 December

BZt-A=t-ALEE

2018 2017
ZE-\E —2tF
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
KA Ei E B WA =1 EH%
HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000
TER % TEn TET % TAT
Installation services only FRERK 122,917 75 39,990 33% 87216 69 42,749 49%
Installation services with HVAC ~ ZE R &R B
systems procurements THEREE 40,712 25 13,110 32% 38,630 31 8,977 23%
163,629 100 53,100 32% 125,846 100 51,726 41%
By timing of revenue recognition: RIWAERERE S
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET % FHET %
Services transferred over time W& B ] 82 7% 19 BR 7% 150,726 92 111,037 88
Products transferred at a point REREREZE
in time Em 12,903 8 14,809 12
163,629 100 125,846 100

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
increased by approximately HK$37,783,000 or 30.0% to
approximately HK$163,629,000.

The increase was primarily attributable to a number of large-scale
projects with a substantial portion of contract revenue recorded
during the year following the respective project execution progress.

BHE-_Z-N\F+-_A=+—HBILFE &K=&
& 8 U A 3 hn49 37,783,000 7T 3 30.0% & 4
163,629,000 % 7T °

ZEMEZEARZBEAREERATEEHN
HEEER  RFERABERBIAHOWA -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIF &

Cost of services

SREC)S S

AR 5 B 2

Year ended 31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
=t —2—tF

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

FET % FHET %

Subcontracting fees PEEA 55,707 50 29,276 39

Materials and consumables YR K FEM 37,384 34 27,837 38

Direct labour BEEST 12,859 12 13,945 19

Others Hith 4,579 4 3,062 4

Total Bt 110,529 100 74,120 100
The Group’s cost of services mainly represented the cost of HVAC ~ ANEBEM RIS AT BIEERAEARGE R EM

systems and other ancillary consumables such as pipes and fittings
and subcontracting charges for completing on-site works. The cost
of services increased by approximately HK$36,409,000 or 49.1% to
approximately HK$110,529,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018, as compared to approximately HK$74,120,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The increase was primarily attributable
to a number of large-scale projects with a substantial portion of
contract revenue undertaking during the year ended 31 December
2018 which demanded additional subcontracting service and usage
of material and consumables.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately HK$1,374,000
or 2.7% from approximately HK$51,726,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately HK$53,100,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The Group’s gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 41.1% to 32.5% over the two
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The decrease in the
gross profit margin was mainly due to the Group recognised a
higher percentage contract revenue for a number of lower margin
projects. The lower gross profit margin of those projects was due to
the relative reliance on subcontractor which lower the profitability
of the projects. The total subcontracting fee was increased from
approximately HK$29,276,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 to HK$55,707,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of approximately HK$26,431,000 or
90.3%.

Other income

The other income mainly consisted of bank interest income and
other services income, which principally included repairing services
and gains on indent sales of HVAC systems recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

EBYFEM (B AMEE B AF) A + LA R FEAK e
THHBEER #HE2-_FT—N\F+-A=+—
HIEFE BREKABHBEE T —+tF+=
B=+—HILFE#74,120,000 % JT 1% hn %)
36,409,0005’%7@?}?49 1% Z #9110,529,000 7

cHENMEFERANRBE T —N\F+=A
_+ BIEFEHBRBOELOBAEAENZ
ERAIEE FEZEIIND BRGEA LA RFEM
B0

EFREHNZE
HE-_Z—/\F+_A=+—HIEFE XK
EENENBREE-_ET—+F+-_A=1+—
B IF 5 JZ #951,726,00078 7T 18 51 491,374,000
B ILE2.7% & #753,100,000 78 TT © 7N & E HY
FMNERBE_ZT—N\FR_E—tF+=
A=+ —HLERMBEERYMN A% THE
325% EFETHRFERARAEBRE T
FEEXREMNEEERRS A LEHNELHK
A e MﬁlﬁaEﬁ%ﬁ‘uff{ﬁﬁ)}mﬁﬁmime
BRoBN - BB & 7JT|35< cHE
—/\¢+ ﬂ +—BIFE - %ﬁﬁﬁ@gﬁ
HREE —tF+=—A=+— Eiirx‘,ﬁﬁ
29,276,0001%75%‘ bz 55,707,000/ 7T -+ 1L iR
#926,431,000%87£5%90.3% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEIEEBi1ia R 2

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs, rent and
rates, meals and entertainment expenses, depreciation expenses,
transportation expenses and others. Administrative expenses
increased from approximately HK$19,624,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately HK$20,982,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The increase in administrative expenses
of the Group was mainly due to an increase in administrative
expenses and professional fee after the Listing, including auditor’s
remuneration, share registration fee, printing fee and other
professional fees.

Listing expenses

Listing expenses comprised professional and other expenses
in relation to the Listing. The listing expenses increased by
approximately HK$11,900,000 or 307.3% from approximately
HK$3,872,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$15,772,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$455,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 represented interest expenses on bank loans and
overdrafts and finance charges on obligations under finance leases.

Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, income tax expenses were
approximately HK$5,721,000 (2017: approximately HK$5,330,000),
and the effective tax rate (excluding the non-recurring Listing
expenses) was approximately 16.8% (2017: 16.3%).

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately HK$12,581,000 (2017: approximately
HK$23,404,000). The decrease in profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
mainly due to the increase in nonrecurring Listing expenses by
approximately HK$11,900,000 incurred in relation to the Listing.

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

THEX

TR EEREETIAA A MEMm-
KEMERS  TERZ scaﬁﬁsi&ﬁﬁﬂ
HE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILEFE T
AYA#E-—"T—+tF+-_A=1+—HILFE
#719,624,000 % JT 3% N = 49 20,982,000 % JT, ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEIEEB51ia R 21T

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables decreased by approximately HK$6,602,000
from approximately HK$27,359,000 as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$20,757,000 as at 31 December 2018. As at 31
December 2017, the trade receivable included a payment certificate
of approximately HK$12,000,000 issued near the end of the
financial year which induced a high trade receivable.

Retention receivables increased by approximately HK$2,628,000
from approximately HK$12,064,000 as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$14,692,000 as at 31 December 2018. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, number of projects were at their
final stage and the increase in retention receivables was in line with
the progress of the projects.

Other receivables decreased by approximately HK$891,000
from approximately HK$1,402,000 as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$511,000 as at 31 December 2018. The decrease
was mainly due to the prepayment of Listing expenses was
transferred to equity upon Listing.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables decreased by approximately HK$1,839,000
from approximately HK$6,017,000 as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$4,178,000 as at 31 December 2018. The decrease
was mainly due to the less submission of payment applications from
the subcontractors near the end of the financial year for the Group’s
certification.

Other payables and accruals increased by approximately HK$403,000
from approximately HK$4,512,000 as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$4,915,000 as at 31 December 2018. The increase
was mainly due to more accrued double pay for the Group’s staff as
at 31 December 2018.

ESREMEKRRIE

RZZE—N\F+-_A=+—H EZEKRFE
AT —tF+=-A=+—H#)27,359,000/%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEIEEBi1ia R 2

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will further expand the service
capabilities to capture business opportunities and provide customers
with comprehensive HVAC E&M engineering services with a prudent
financial management strategy, pursuing a long-term healthy
business growth and stable return to the shareholders.

To facilitate the business expansion goal through internal
advancements, the Group has been providing training to existing
staff. The Group has arranged 10 employees to attend the
programme “Certificate in Building Information Modelling” in early
2018, which designed to equip employees with the practical and
specialised knowledge and skills in building information modelling.
In addition, the Group has been providing financial support to an
employee for attending BSc (Hons) Building Services Engineering
with the study of building services design set in the context of
energy efficiency and the carbon reduction agenda.

Intend to expand our professional talent pool, the Group will employ
chartered engineers with relevant experience in the speciality of
ventilation works, assistant engineers, foreman, draftsman and
guantity surveyor in the forthcoming two to three years’ time
(depending on the pace of our business growth) to fulfil the
application requirements for and to acquire the qualification as a
registered specialist contractor in the ventilation works category
under the Buildings Department.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had net current assets of approximately HK$159,853,000
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$47,121,000). The quick ratio of
the Group was approximately 10.9 times as at 31 December 2018
(2017: approximately 2.2 times). The Group generally financed
its daily operations by its internal resources and bank borrowings.
The Group financed its business expansion and new business
opportunities from the net proceeds from Listing. The remaining
unused net proceeds as at 31 December 2018 were placed as
interest-bearing deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 22(c) to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIF &

FINANCIAL POLICIES

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of the settlement
of its trade payables and financing obligations, and its cash flow
management. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in both the short
and long term.

GEARING RATIO AND DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO
The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated based on the total
debt divided by total equity (defined as the sum of bank borrowings
and obligation under finance leases as at the respective year divided
by the total equity as at the respective corresponding year) was
approximately 0.9% as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 54.4%).

The Group’s debt to equity ratio, which is calculated based on the
total debt (defined as the sum of bank borrowings and obligation
under finance leases minus cash and cash equivalents as at the
respective year end divided by total equity as at the respective
corresponding year) was not applicable due to the Group recorded
net cash position as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 50.6%).

The Group's bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 were all
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The interest rates were ranged
from 3.13% to 5.23% per annum.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group invested
approximately HK$146,000 (2017: approximately HK$117,000)
in plant and equipment, mainly represented motor vehicle and
furniture and fixtures for the office.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (2017: HK$Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases were secured by corporate
guarantees and motor vehicle respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any significant investment, material acquisition nor disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEIEEBi1ia R 2

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of Company dated 28 June 2018
(the “Prospectus”), the Group did not have other future plans for
material investments or capital assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group is not
significantly exposed to foreign currency risk arising from monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the respective group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy as the foreign currency risk is considered to be insignificant.
However, the management will continue to closely monitor the
Group’s foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure when necessary.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 79 employees (2017: 81
employees) with total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
of approximately HK$26,372,000 incurred for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$28,236,000). The Group’s remuneration
packages are generally structured with reference to market terms
and individual merits. The remuneration committee of the Company
makes recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Mr. Cheung
Yuen Tung, Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau and Prime Pinnacle Limited
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into a
deed of non-competition dated 8 June 2018 (“Deed of Non-
competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and as trustee
for each of its subsidiaries). For details of the Deed of Non-
competition, please refer to the section headed “Relationship with
the Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the
Prospectus. Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed
that none of them is engaged in or interested in any business (other
than the Group) which, directly or indirectly, competes or may
compete with the business of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the status of compliance and
written confirmation from each of the Controlling Shareholders,
and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
competition have been complied with by each of the Controlling
Shareholders since the Listing and up to the date of this annual
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BEIEEB51ia R 21T

COMPETING INTEREST

Since the Listing and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or
their close associates are interested in any business which competes
or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group nor any conflicts of interest which has or may have with the
Group.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Messis Capital Limited (“Messis”), the Company’s
compliance adviser, save for the compliance agreement entered into
between the Company and Messis in connection with the Listing,
neither of Messis or its directors, employees or close associates had
any interest in the Group as at 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report, which is required to be notified to the
Company.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on 11 July
2018 and 250,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$0.52
per share by way of share offer (the “Share Offer”). Net proceeds
from the Share Offer was approximately HK$102.4 million (after
deducting the underwriting fees and other related expenses).

The net proceeds will be used for the intended purposes as set out
in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
Prospectus. Set out below is the actual utilisation of net proceeds up
to the date of this annual report:
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General working capital —REEES 10,138 10,138 =
102,400 12,018 90,382
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tung (“Mr. Tony Cheung”)

Mr. Tony Cheung, aged 59, is the chairman of the Board, an
executive Director and one of the Controlling Shareholders. He was
appointed as a Director on 4 November 2017 and redesignated as
an executive Director on 12 March 2018. He is also a director of Man
Tung Air-Conditioning Works Limited (“Man Tung AC Works")
and Man Tung Air-Conditioning E&M Limited (“Man Tung AC
E&M"), both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Tony Cheung is primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning, business development, and corporate management and
sales and marketing of the Group.

Mr. Tony Cheung has over 20 years of experience in air-conditioning
E&M engineering services industry. Mr. Tony Cheung established a
sole proprietorship in 1986 in the trade name of “Man Tung Air-
conditioning Works” to carry on the business of providing air-
conditioning installation services. He is the co-founder of Man Tung
AC Works and Shun Tung Engineering Company Limited (“Shun
Tung”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
has been a director of Man Tung AC Works since its incorporation
on 19 November 1996. Mr. Tony Cheung established Man Tung AC
E&M in April 2008 and has been a director of the company since
then. Mr. Tony Cheung, together with Mr. Gary Cheung, has been
responsible for formulating and determining corporate and business
strategies and making major operation decisions, monitoring the
business operations, reviewing and approving significant contracts
and investment, appointment and appraisal of senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Tony Cheung is the brother of Mr. Gary Cheung, the executive
Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENREREIBAESERE

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Chau (“Mr. Gary Cheung”)

Mr. Gary Cheung, aged 54, is the chief executive officer of the
Company, an executive Director and one of the Controlling
Shareholders. He was appointed as a Director on 4 November
2017 and redesignated as an executive Director of the Company
on 12 March 2018. Mr. Gary Cheung is responsible for the general
management and supervising day-to-day operation of the Group.

Mr. Gary Cheung has approximately 20 years of experience in air-
conditioning E&M engineering services industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Gary Cheung was involved in the operation of the sole
proprietorship “Man Tung Air-conditioning Works"” established by
Mr. Tony Cheung in the provision of air-conditioning installation
services. He is the co-founder of Man Tung AC Works and Shun
Tung and has been a director of Shun Tung since its incorporation
on 6 November 1998. Mr. Gary Cheung, together with Mr. Tony
Cheung, has been responsible for formulating and determining
corporate and business strategies and making major operation
decisions, monitoring the business operations, reviewing and
approving significant contracts and investment, appointment and
appraisal of senior management of the Group.

Mr. Gary Cheung is the brother of Mr. Tony Cheung, the executive
Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENRENREIEASERE

Mr. TANG Chi Chiu (resigned on 9 April 2019)

Mr. Tang, aged 35, is the executive Director. Mr. Tang joined the
Group as chief financial officer in January 2017. He was appointed
as a Director on 27 February 2018 and redesignated as an executive
Director on 12 March 2018. He was primarily responsible for
overseeing the Group's overall financial accounting and reporting.

Mr. Tang is currently a practising certified public accountant in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang worked at HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited from February 2007 to April 2009 with his last
position being senior accountant. He worked in SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited from January 2010 to November 2011 with his last
position as an assistant manager. Mr. Tang was a finance manager
of Fortune Case Limited, a subsidiary of China Fortune Financial
Group Limited from May 2012 to July 2013. He has been appointed
as a director of TANDEM Groups Limited, TANDEM (HK) CPA
Limited, TANDEM (HK) Professional Services Limited, TANDEM (HK)
Corporate Services Limited and TANDEM (HK) Consulting Limited
since December 2011 and v-Change (HK) Merchants Services
Company Limited since August 2017, for which he is responsible for
overall strategic planning.

Mr. Tang graduated from City University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree in business administration, majoring in
accountancy in November 2006. He further obtained a master of
science degree majoring in finance from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2016. Mr. Tang was admitted as a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") in
February 2011.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENREREIBAESERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson

Mr. Pang, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 8 June 2018. Mr. Pang is responsible for overseeing the
Group's compliance, internal control and corporate governance,
but not participating in the day-to-day management of the business
operation.

Mr. Pang has over 35 years of experience in the legal profession
in Hong Kong. Mr. Pang has been a partner of Y.C. Lee, Pang,
& Kwok Solicitors (formerly known as Y.C. Lee, Pang, Kwok & Ip
Solicitors) since July 1987. Prior to joining Y.C. Lee, Pang & Kwok
Solicitors, Mr. Pang was an assistant solicitor at Gallant Y.T. Ho &
Co., Solicitors & Notaries from March 1983 to March 1986. From
March 1986 to June 1987, Mr. Pang served as an assistant solicitor
at Deacons, Solicitors & Notaries. Mr. Pang has been a legal adviser
of Kwun Tong Resident Association, Kwun Tong Association for
Elderly Limited and Shun Lee Yin Ngai Society Limited since July
2005, February 2010 and July 2013, respectively.

Mr. Pang was appointed as a Kwun Tong District board member
from April 1985 to September 1994. From April 1989 to May 1991,
Mr. Pang was an urban councillor. He acted as the district affairs
adviser of the News China Agency from March 1994 to June 1997,
responsible for advising on district affairs. Since 2012, Mr. Pang has
been the vice-president of Eastern Kowloon of Hong Kong of the
Scout Association, who is responsible for managing the financial
affairs of Eastern Kowloon Region of Hong Kong Scout Association.
He was the school manager of Kit Sum Lam Bing Yin Secondary
School since 2003 up to August 2017.

Mr. Pang obtained a bachelors of laws degree from The University of
Hong Kong in November 1980. He was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in March 1983, a solicitor of England
& Wales in June 1989 and a barrister of High Court of Australia in
December 1989. He was appointed as a civil celebrant of marriages
in June 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENRENREIEASERE

Mr. LAU Yu Ching

Mr. Lau, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 8 June 2018. Mr. Lau is responsible for overseeing the
Group's compliance, internal control and corporate governance, but
not participating in the day-to-day management of our business
operation.

Mr. Lau has over 26 years of experience in accounting and finance.
Mr. Lau joined Asia Aluminum Holdings Limited, a company which
engages in aluminium profile extrusion and aluminium panel
manufacturing in April 1996 with his last position as a chief financial
officer. Mr. Lau then joined Asiaalum Holdings Limited in August
2009 as its chief financial controller until July 2014, responsible for
corporate management, major business decisions plans and direction
of strategic decisions. From July 2014 to June 2015, Mr. Lau was an
independent non-executive director of Kirin Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8109), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
and principally carries on the business of providing energy efficiency
solutions and engineering solutions and engineering services in the
PRC, insurance brokerage and money lending services in Hong Kong
and information technology services in the Philippines. Mr. Lau has
been a director of Aceleap Consulting Limited, a company which
carries on the business of the provision of private equity consultancy
services since January 2015.

Mr. Lau graduated from the University of Western Ontario in Canada
with a bachelor’s degree of science in 1989. He is currently an
associate member of HKICPA and a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"). He has been admitted
as a member of the HKICPA and ACCA in June 1997 and May 1997,
respectively. Mr. Lau further became a fellow of the ACCA since
May 2002.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENREREIBAESERE

Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson (formerly known as
Law Chi Cheong)

Mr. Law, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 8 June 2018. Mr. Law is responsible for overseeing the
Group's compliance, internal control and corporate governance, but
not participating in the day-to-day management of our business
operation.

Mr. Law has over 35 years of experience in banking and corporate
finance industry. Mr. Law joined Manufacturers Hanover Trust
Company in March 1982 with his last position as an officer-in-charge
of the regional processing centre, responsible for training, quality
control and daily operation. From June 1989 to December 1989,
Mr. Law worked as an account officer at the First Interstate Bank
of California. From November 1991 to August 1998, he worked at
Fillpark Limited with his last position as a general manager. Mr. Law
joined Rank Charm Development Limited as a general manager from
1994 to 1996. He also worked as a general manager in Wholewin
Group, a company specialised in digital marketing from 2005 to
2008. Since 2008, Mr. Law has been an associate director of JP
Advisory Limited, a company specialise in corporate finance. Since
September 2013, he has also been the chairman of Angel Fund Co.
Ltd., and a non-executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8269), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
which principally carries on natural resources trading and financial
businesses. Since February 2014, he was employed as a chief
operating officer of Cheung Sheng Global Holdings Limited and
was responsible for overseeing general operation of the company.
Since July 2015, Mr. Law has been a director, chairman and chief
financial officer of Sealand Capital Galaxy Limited (United Kingdom
stock code: SGCL), a company listed on the London Stock Exchange,
responsible for the management of the company and strategic
business development. Mr. Law has been an independent non-
executive director of K Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8475), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since July 2018. Mr.
Law completed secondary school education in Hong Kong in 1979.

Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors (i) has not held
any directorships in any public companies (the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas) in
the last three years; (ii) does not have any relationship with any
other Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company; and (iii) does not hold any positions
in the Company or other members of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EENRENREIEASERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. YIP Kam Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 36, is the project director of the Group. Mr. Yip has
over 11 years of experience in E&M engineering services industry.
He joined the Group in May 2006 as an assistant engineer and was
subsequently promoted as a project manager. Mr. Yip is responsible
for management and technical direction of the Group’s projects
and overseeing project design, development and overall project
performance of the Group. Mr. Yip graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
building services engineering in October 2012.

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Fun, Andy

Mr. Cheung, aged 34, is the project director of the Group. Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in July 2008 as an assistant engineer and
was subsequently promoted as a project manager. Mr. Cheung is
responsible for management and technical direction of the Group’s
projects and overseeing project design, development and overall
project performance of the Group.

Mr. Cheung graduated from McMaster University in Canada
with a bachelor degree of engineering, majoring in mechanical
engineering in November 2008. In November 2014, he further
obtained a master degree of science in building services engineering
from The University of Hong Kong. He has been a member of
American Society of Heating Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning
Engineers since November 2008. Mr. Cheung has over 11 years of
experience in E&M engineering services industry. Mr. Cheung was
an engineering trainee in Honda of Canada from September 2007
to November 2008 prior to joining the Group. Mr. Cheung is the
son of Mr. Tony Cheung, the executive Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. LO Wan Man (appointed on 9 April 2019)

Ms. Lo, aged 44, has over 20 years of experience in the area of
accounting, auditing and financial management for both listed and
private companies in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
by working in an international accounting firm and other listed
companies. She obtained a master of science in finance from City
University of Hong Kong in July 2005. She worked at Ernst & Young
from March 2001 to December 2003. She was then employed by
Emperor Motion Picture (Hong Kong) Limited as finance manager
from May 2004 to July 2008. Subsequently, she worked at New
World Telecommunications Limited as finance manager in July 2008
until her resignation in March 2010. She was a finance manager of
Midland IC&I Limited from May 2011 to January 2014. Since May
2015 she has been employed by MCGI Consultancy Limited as a
senior consultant. Ms. Lo is a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2003.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Man
Shun Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) have the pleasure
in submitting their first report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 11 April 2017 and was
registered as a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (Laws of Hong Kong) on 24 August
2017. Pursuant to the completion of the reorganisation as detailed
in the section headed “History, Development And Reorganisation”
in the Prospectus to rationalise the structure of the Group in
preparation for the Listing, the Company became the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group.

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 11 July 2018 through the Share Offer as
described in the section headed “Structure of the Share Offer” in
the Prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
GLOBAL OFFERING

The aggregate net proceeds from the Share Offer (after deducting
listing expenses borne by the Company) amounted to approximately
HK$102.4 million. The net proceeds will be used for the intended
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The use of proceeds from the Listing
up to the date of this report is included in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 14.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of installation of heat, ventilation
and air-conditioning system (the “HVAC Business”) in Hong Kong.

Details of the activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018 and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development, and also the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 December 2018 using financial key performance indicators
are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 14 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 contained the information
required under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) is set out on pages 35 to 58 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed in Hong
Kong, the Company is mainly governed by the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Listing Rules.
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, and each of its committee has its
own term of reference defining their respective rights, duties and
obligation.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, there is no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group which
has a significant impact on its business and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its employees, customers, suppliers, governments
and business associates to fulfil its long-term goals and development.
To enhance its competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering
high quality services to its customers constantly and to continue
establishing a caring environment to employees and emphasis the
personal development of its employees. During the year ended
31 December 2018, there was no material or significant dispute
between the Group and its stakeholders.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of
the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions or growth
prospects. The Group has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the
concerns of stakeholders. Key risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group are listed below:

—  the revenue is mainly derived from HVAC E&M engineering
projects which are non-recurrent in nature and any failure
of our Group to secure tender contracts would affect our
operations and financial results;

—  error or inaccurate estimation of project execution timeframe
and/or project duration and/or costs may result in substantial
loss incurred by us or adversely affect our revenue and
profitability;

- reliance on the major customers;

—  the revenue and profit margin are subject to fluctuations driven
by various factors including but not limited to variation orders,
and the past revenue and profit margin may not be indicative
of our future financial performance;

—  the strategy to undertake more projects as first-tier HVAC E&M
subcontractor and diversify the customer base could lead to
lower gross and net profit margin going forward; and

— may not be able to bill and receive the full amount of gross
amount due from customers for contract work, if progress
payment or retention money is not paid in full as a result of
disputes over the work done, the liquidity position may be
adversely affected.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No event has occurred after 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this report which would have a material effect on the Group.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 79 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend to declare a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The Board do not have a fixed dividend policy and the Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio. The
payment and the amount of any future dividends will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend on a number of factors,
including but not limited to the operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, cash flow position, general financial
condition and other factors that the Directors deem relevant.
Investors should note that historical dividend distributions are not
indicative of the Company’s future dividend distribution policy.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 6 June 2019 (the “AGM"). A notice convening the AGM
has been issued to the Shareholders together with this annual
report, which is also available on the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at www.hkexnews.hk
and the Company’s website www.manshungroup.com.hk.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 3 June 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In order to be
eligible to attend and to vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 4 of this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s securities listed on the Stock Exchange.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in Note 22(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 22(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 80 of this annual report
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of the reserves
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s memorandum and articles of association was
HK$92,833,000 (2017: HK$Nil).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018 are
set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$57,000).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this Directors’ Report, no other equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 8
June 2018, the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The Board is entitled at any time and from
time to time grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
the Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. The Directors were
authorised to grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company
and to allot, issue and deal with the shares pursuant to the exercise
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all
such steps as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and
give effect to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue immediately following completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus dated 28 June 2018), being
1,000,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may be issued
under the options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of
the Company), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.
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The Board may, at its discretion, determine the minimum period
for which the option has to be held before it can be exercised, and
the period during which an option may be exercised. However, no
options shall be exercised ten years after they have been granted.
The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular option
shall be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s on the daily quotation sheet on the
date of the grant of the option, which must be a trading day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 55.9% and 97.0% of the
Group's revenue were attributable to the largest customer and the
five largest customers of the Group, respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 16.6% and 36.6% of the
total direct costs of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tung (Chairman)

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Chau

Mr. TANG Chi Chiu (resigned on 9 April 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson

Mr. LAU Yu Ching

Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 15 to 21 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board will retire from office at the first general
meeting. Accordingly, (i) Mr. Cheung Yuen Tung and Mr. Cheung
Yuen Chau, each an executive Director; and (i) Mr. Pang Kam Fai,
Dickson, Mr. Lau Yu Ching and Mr. Law Chung Lam, Nelson, each
an independent non-executive Director, will retire from office and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. TANG Chi Chiu (“Mr. Tang”) would like to devote more time
for his personal affairs and resigned as the executive Director,
company secretary and authorised representative of the Company
effective on 9 April 2019. Mr. Tang has confirmed that he had no
disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to
his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a
subsidiary of its holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has carried
transactions with its related party as detailed in Note 25(b) to the
consolidated financial statements. Save for as disclosed above, no
other transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or
a subsidiary of its holding companies was a party or were parties
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has any contract of
significance (including contract of significance for the provision of
services) with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors was
interested in any business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Board at least once per year with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and results of the
Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 8
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the five individuals with
the highest emoluments in the Group comprises 3 Directors and 2
individuals, which included the senior management of the Company.
Details of the highest paid individuals are set out in Note 8 and Note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2018. In addition, the Company has taken
out and kept in force appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) which were required to be: (i) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors and chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules,
are set out below:

(i) Long positions in the Share

BIEEE (k) BRAR ZB-N\FFH
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EERESFNERRKR

NZZE—N\F+-_A=+—H EFERAQA
BETBABRARQ RS ETMAEEE (F
ERBEBEPESTIEZLLBEKRD ([EH
REIEH®RBGI) EXVER) B H - BEIR G k&
EEREE  (VBREEHFRBEKRNEXVIE
7R 8D EBAME AN A R) K B 3 P A M R MO0k
B REREELALRPERINBEGEY &
ERADFEREBITRAEWEER R AEHS
RS RAR)  (NVBBELERARAREES
M EIEAIE3IRIEFENERM 2 e K%
2SR E TR B SR 10FT 8 £ BT
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EMG AR MRS AR

(i) RRGBEFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares  shareholding

IR

EEpE 55 REEME gy S 4= BMAOB S

Mr. Cheung Yuen Tung Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%

("Tony Cheung”) (note) RYEEEER

kT A ([RTBERED (M)

Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%

("Gary Cheung”) (note) R EEER

SRITIKSE A ([RITMKE £ D) (I aE)

Note:  Prime Pinnacle Limited (“Prime Pinnacle”) is beneficially
owned as to 51% by Mr. Tony Cheung and 49% by Mr. Gary
Cheung. On 12 March 2018, Mr. Tony Cheung and Mr. Gary
Cheung entered into the concert party deed to acknowledge
and confirm, among other things, that they are parties acting
in concert and are deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Prime Pinnacle.

M3 : Prime Pinnacle Limited ([ Prime
Pinnacle |) f3 3R 7T i 55 A IR SR o ISR A
DR EREES1% RA9% s - R =
Z—-NE=A+=-0 " RTBELHEER
TORKE AT —BITE A T84, - DA
REER (ATl FEE—BTH
AL X #48 & K Prime Pinnacle BT
IR R B R o
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(ii) Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporation

(i) REBZEESERNER

Approximate

Name of associated  Capacity/ Number of percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest share(s) held  shareholding
EEnA B LEERE B EmHE RO E RESAEI L
Mr. Tony Cheung (note) Prime Pinnacle Beneficial owner
sRoT@ ok A (i aE) BB A 51 51%
Mr. Gary Cheung (note) Beneficial owner
SR TR ST A& (T RE) Prime Pinnacle EEMER A 49 49%
Note:  Prime Pinnacle is the direct shareholder of the Company and MIEE : Prime Pinnacle /& 7N A &) By B % A% 3 LA
is an associated corporation within the meaning of Part XV of R &5 L EEEM E XV 38T R E 54
the SFO. BOER o

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other
than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) had, or were
taken or deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were entered in the register kept by

the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

TERRNESZRAXR

BEAEERARARSTRABMAM R
E-NE+_A=T—H UTAL (B
EEYARARDITHRAER) RAR B
MRARMTHES  WEFIWELEEREE
M EHROIEXVERE 2 KX 37 B EX AR
ARBWE  ALBRARBAREZ R RPE
EPIFE 336 RFENERRMZERIAR

Approximate

Capacity/ Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares  shareholding
i RE
BREREE MR 54, ERrE BRHEEE BHABES
Prime Pinnacle (note 1) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 75%
Prime Pinnacle (Fft3E 1) EnEA A
Ms. Chan Ho Fung (note 2) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 75%
fR 4t Bl 2z &= (F¥5E2) e B 4 2
Ms. Cheng Phyllis Woon Kink (note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 75%

#ie38 22+ (KIE3) ACiBfE s




Notes:

(1) Prime Pinnacle is beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Tony Cheung
and 49% by Mr. Gary Cheung. On 12 March 2018, Mr. Tony
Cheung and Mr. Gary Cheung entered into the concert party deed to
acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they are parties
acting in concert and are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Prime Pinnacle.

(2) Ms. Chan Ho Fung is the spouse of Mr. Tony Cheung. Accordingly,
Ms. Chan Ho Fung is deemed or taken to be interested in the shares in
which Mr. Tony Cheung is interested under the SFO.

(3)  Ms. Cheng Phyllis Woon Kink is the spouse of Mr. Gary Cheung.
Accordingly, Ms. Cheng Phyllis Woon Kink is deemed or taken to be
interested in the shares in which Mr. Gary Cheung is interested under
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by
any other persons (other than Directors or chief executives of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were entered in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2018.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING

OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, and none of which constitutes a discloseable
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the AGM. The shares
of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 11 July 2018
and there has been no change in auditor since then.

By order of the Board

CHEUNG Yuen Tung
Chairman

27 March 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Man Shun Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) is pleased
to present our annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 to provide an
overview of the Group’s management of significant issues affecting
the operation, including environmental, social and governance
("ESG") issues.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the Group’s ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are in
place.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report illustrates the Group’s initiative and performance
regarding the environmental and social aspects during the reporting
period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”).

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report covers all subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong with
core business that principally engaged in provision of installation
of heat, ventilation and air-conditioning system (the “HVAC
Business”) in Hong Kong. The Group will continue in assessing the
impacts of its business on the major ESG aspects and to include in
the Report.

REPORTING BASIS

The Report is prepared with the ESG Reporting Guide set out by
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements of the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide. In view
of our first time disclosure of certain key performance indicator
("KPIs"), which is considered as material by the Group, during the
Reporting Period, the Group will continue to optimize and improve
the disclosure of KPIs.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on the Report for
our sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to
info@manshun.com.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

We identified the key stakeholders of our business operations.
We interact with our stakeholders regularly through various
communication channels. The following table illustrates the issues of
concern of our major stakeholders and the ways we communicate

with stakeholders:

KHESH

ChES

BABAHERBLETNTIERMNE > LEB
SHEBRBERNEETHEY - TRHHAE
EFNEMBINEEARKMEZNEBR

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
B0E e SERE Hit
Government - To comply with the laws - Onssite inspections and checks - Operated, managed and paid taxes
- Proper tax payment - Research and discussion through according to laws and regulations,
- Promote regional economic work conferences, work reports strengthened safety management;
development and preparation and submission for accepted the government's
employment approval supervision, inspection and
- Interim reports, annual reports, evaluation, and actively undertook
announcements social responsibilities.
- Company website
B - BTER - EBHEERRE - BEARRERSE ERRAK
- REBB - WEREBIFEZENTHR MER2ER  BXBAEE &

Shareholders and
Investors

BRREEREE

fRERNEEERINE

Return on the investment
Information disclosure and
transparency

Protection of interests
and fair treatment of
shareholders

Business risk management

BE @R
EHBEERE
RERRMER AT
R

FBEAREE

RET RS R RE S
i3

- PEHRE FHRRAM

- REA

- Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings

- Interim reports, annual reports,
announcements

- Company website

- Meeting with investors and
analysts

- BREBAFAEREMKEAE
- PERE - FR A

- REAN

- BERBERSMEEE

BERAHE TREARELERE-

- lIssued notices of general meeting
and proposed resolutions according
to regulations, disclosed company’s
information by publishing 8
announcements/circulars and interim
report in total in the year.

- Carried out different forms of
investor activities with an aim to
improve investors recognition. Held
results briefing once. Disclosed
company contact details on website
and in reports and ensured all
communication channels are
available and effective.

- REERTBRRASBRERER
RER REREHTESHAM
/BRHRPRREABRBARER

- AREREERAEMBIEEN
ANREEED - BIT—REEH
NG REUERBRETRER DB
REHN  THRRMEBRRERN
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Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BhE Be SHERE i
Employees - Safeguard the rights and - Conference - Provided a healthy and safe working
interests of employees - Training, seminars and briefing environment; developed a fair
- Working environment sessions mechanism for promotion; cared for
- Career development - Annual performance appraisal employees by helping those in need
opportunities - Intranet and emails and organizing employee activities.
- Self-actualization
- Health and safety
EE - REES#ER - BF - k(&fﬁimlﬁka BUA
- IfER%R - B BERENE TFEARE REFZEPNES
- EXUEREE - FEXRBEME REREEED -
- BHER - NEEREH
- REERE
Customers - Safe and high-quality - Website, brochures, interim - Established laboratory, strengthened
products reports, annual reports, quality management to ensure
- Stable relationship announcements stable service standards, and entered
- Information transparency - Email and customer service into long-term strategic cooperation
- Integrity hotline agreements.
- Business ethics - Feedback forms
- Regular meeting
zP - RERBEER - B EEMTF oRERE. - RUBRE MREESER - UE
- RTEBE G RN RIRBIZERT - YR KB
- EHERE - EBREPRBAK B -
- #BE -  EBR%
- ARER - EHezE
Suppliers/Partners - Long-term partnership - Business meetings, supplier - Invited tenders publicly to select best
- Honest cooperation conferences, phone calls and suppliers and contractors, performed
- Fair, open interviews contracts according to agreements,
- Information resources - Regular meeting enhanced daily communication, and
sharing - Review and assessment established long-term cooperation

1R/ A B

- Risk reduction

- RERHEK

P ﬂ?éﬁ
D\

- Tendering process

- Company website

- Email, circulars and manual

- ikeE fHEmeR EH
RE#H

- EHezE

- RERE

- HERER

- DEE%

- BH BARFM

with quality suppliers and
contractors.

- BRRRRRERREGRRER R
Eﬁ REBZETEHO - MRA
AR TEEDGHERIARR
BUKHAFERE -
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Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures

B0E e SERE i

Peer/Industry - Experience sharing - Industry conference - Stuck to fair play, cooperated with
associations - Corporations - Site visit peers to realize win-win, shared

- Fair competition experiences and attended about a
dozen of seminars of the industry
50 as to promote sustainable
development of the industry.

A%/ %Hhe - BBAE - 11%83 - BRATHRF ARRAFERE

- A - BRT W DEER ARBNEETE

- ATEER Hag  WESTETREER -

Financial Institution - Compliance with the law - Consulting - Complied with regulatory
and regulations - Information disclosure requirements in a strict manner,

- Disclose information - Reports disclosed and reported information
in a timely and accurate manner
according to law.

TRIEE - BTERRER - B# - BRETEERT  RERFER

- BEEN ~  EBBE WRERBEER -

— H tmt
Media - Transparent information - Company website - Organized conference, media
- Communication with media - Interviews gathering and site visit to enhance
- Media conference the communication with media.
- Media gathering
BE - BHEHR - DA - HRes EEFeREMER
- EEFEER - @A DANSR R E BB o
-  REREE

- fER%e
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Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BhE Be SHERE #it
Public and communities - Community involvement - Volunteering - Gave priority to local people seeking

- Social responsibilities
- Promote employment

REALRHE - HE2S8
- HEERf
- fRERE

- Charity and social investment
Annual reports

- RLEH
- EERHERE
- FR

jobs from the Company so as to
promote community building and
development; built roads, protected
the communities” ecological
environment, and provided timely
compensation and assistance;
provided volunteer service, kept
communication channels open
between the Company and the
communities and villagers, co-
sponsored community activities

to promote the building up of
harmonious communities.
BERBEBARRAKBHE WA -
REHBRERRER  BREK-
REMEERLRS - REREHE
REY: RESTRE  REFAK
ARREMERNENBBRE -
HEBPHEED  RERZRNE
M e
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Aspect A1: Emissions

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development and compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group endeavors to
minimise the environmental impact of the business activities
and maintain green operations and green office practices.

Our business is mainly providing HVAC electrical and
mechanical engineering (“E&M engineering”) services which
focus on servicing new residential property development
projects as a first-tier or second-tier subcontractor in Hong
Kong. Our work performed as a first-tier subcontractor is
mainly for overall project management and supervision of
HVAC E&M engineering works conducted by us and/or our
subcontractors to ensure their conformity to contractual
specifications and requirements of the property developers
while work performed as second-tier subcontractor is mainly
responsible to execute installation work of HVAC system such
as fixing of devices and connection of various pipe through
our workers and subcontractor. Meanwhile, we delegate
part of the installation process or overall installation works
for part of the site areas to our subcontractors to assist us in
completing on-site works. Thus, given the nature of our HVAC
E&M engineering services that focus on project management
and installation work, together with subcontracting practice,
the Group poses less negative impact to the environment than
most typical construction/engineering industries.

Our Group's operations in work sites are subject to certain
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws in Hong
Kong, such as Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has been in
strict compliance with the above relevant laws and regulation
in Hong Kong. We endeavour to minimise any adverse impact
on the environment resulting from our business activities. In
order to comply with the applicable environmental protection
laws, we had implemented an environmental management
system. Apart from following the environmental protection
policies formulated and required by our customers, we have
also established our environmental management policy to
ensure proper management of environmental protection and
compliance of environmental laws and regulations by both
our employees and workers of the subcontractors on, among
others, noise control and waste disposal.
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Such key measures and procedures concerning mainly noise
pollution and waste control include, amongst other things:

Noise control
— Installation of acoustic barriers as required,

—  Inspection and maintenance of all equipment before use
for compliance of permitted noise level;

—  Works to be undertaken in accordance with the permitted
work hours as specified by each project.

Waste disposal

- Waste to be segregated into general wastes and
construction wastes before transporting to landfills;

—  The Company has established and maintain procedures
designed to control risks arising from handling storage,
use and disposal of substances hazardous to health and
specific safety training has been conducted to relevant
persons for handling the hazardous substance;

—  The Company will also follow main-contractor’s safety
regulation on site basis and reviewed by the main-
contractor on a regular period.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
related to environmental protection.

Regarding hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, solid wastes
Wastes are separately stored and handled with the ledger for
record. During the Reporting Period, the Group generated/
consumed no significant hazardous and non-hazardous waste
and water due to its business nature.
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Major air pollutants emission from vehicles during the RSB EREENEE RIS LM
Reporting Period as follows: BIERAT

Air Pollutant Emission

ERTRYBFERER

Air Pollutant

Emission (kg)

ERITEY

Type of Air Pollutants ERTRYER HHE (T%)
Sulphur dioxide =R | 0.34
Nitrogen oxides RAREY 191.45
Particulate matter (e k= 18.25

During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas (“GHG") R¥REHIH - LEELMAERE (BERE])

emission from the operation is set out below: BERIBRIAT
GHG Emission
AERBHERBER
Equivalent CO,
emission (kg)

—E bR
Type of GHG emissions BERBHEBRER EE2(FR)
Scope 1 Direct emissions #HE 1 EEHEN 61,198.65
Scope 2 Indirect emission E 2 BN 14,230.53
Total Fo 75,429.18
Intensity (kg/revenue HK$'000) RE(FR/FTHTEA) 0.46
Note: Mo -
The calculation of the GHG gas is based on the “A Corporate EEREREERERERTZTFE(NEE:
Accounting and Reporting Standard” from The GHG Protocol. BREIZAEE |5 E -
Scope 1: Direct emission from vehicles that are owned by the Group. HE: NEBFTHEE@MAEEER -
Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity EE 2 NEEFEEINEE HEENBHIZHER -
consumed by the Group.
Scope 3 is not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure and the HESWERE RESHBERERELN

corresponding emission is not controlled by the Group. RAHE R IE AR R
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

The Group places high priority on the efficient use of resources.
The major resources used by the Group are electricity, water,
and paper. The Group strives to improve the efficient use of
natural resources, such as minimising waste/emissions and
implementing effective recycling program. Practical measures
are implemented as follows:

Electricity

Electricity saving measures are encouraged that electrical
appliances are required to be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20
minutes or less. The room temperature should be set in a range
from 20°C to 26°C. Also, power supply should be switched off
when they are not in use. Preference will be given to office
equipment with relatively high energy efficiency.

Energy consumption by the Group during the Reporting Period
is set out below:

Energy Consumption

BEA2: ERER
AEB+OERBRERER - AEEE
ANEIEERREN KEERK AEH
HOBERAERERRE - flanEER
DREY, B - B A R B YA & -
AT REEMHEREG

Ep)

$%§§Eﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁ?€ i - BES T o A AL
RERHERN - ERMNEBHERAR
E?%ZO%&%BZEE& o =R FE R TE A 20°C
E26°CHEEM © WLH - BIRETAEE
B AEEMELEAERUERSN
NS

AREERREHREAELROBFREDT

BERCHFE
Energy consumed
(kwh)
Fr3EsEiR
Type of energy gERER (FERE)
Unleaded petrol ST 153,156.37
Diesel Se0m 55,963.70
Purchased electricity SNEE T 27,903.00
Total #at 237,023.07
Energy intensity (kWh/revenue HK$'000)  ESRZBE (FRE FHITWA) 1.45

Water

The impact of freshwater use is relatively insignificant for the
Group. The Group did not encounter any problems in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose.

P/
ERRKEAEENTERER/ D - AE
B BR B B /K TT T Y RSB B (] S e
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Paper

Reduction in paper use indirectly reduces the overall GHG
emission. The Group has been taking the following steps to
reduce paper consumption:

—  Reduce the use of paper by printing or photocopying on
both sides of paper, where applicable;

—  Encourage the employee to use suitable font size/
shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible. Besides,
electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimise using paper.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of paper and
packaging material was 104 kg and 32,640 pieces, respectively.

Aspect A3: the Environment and Natural
Resources

The Group raises staff’s awareness on environmental issues
through education and training and enlist employees’ support
in improving the Group's performance, promote environmental
awareness amongst the customers, business partners and
shareholders and support community activities in relation
to environmental protection and sustainability and evaluate
regularly and monitor past and present business activities
impacting upon health, safety and environmental matters. With
the integration of policies mentioned in sections “Emission”
and “Use of Resource”, the Group strives to minimise the
impacts to the environment and natural resources.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Aspect B1: Employment

We endeavour to use our best effort to attract and retain
appropriate and suitable personnel to serve our Group. Our
Group assesses the available human resources on a continuous
basis and will determine whether additional personnel are
required to cope with the business development of our Group.
The Group’s staff handbook sets out the our standards for
compensation and dismissal, promotion and salary review,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity and other
benefits and welfare. The Group entered into separate labour
contracts with each of our employees in accordance with the
applicable labour laws of Hong Kong.
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We generally recruit our employees through placing
advertisements in the open market with reference to factors
such as their experience, qualifications and expertise required
for our business operations. They are normally subject to three
months probation period starting on board. The remuneration
package our Group offered to our employees includes salary,
bonuses, other cash subsidies and Mandatory Provident Fund
(MPF). In general, our Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority.
Our Group has designed an annual review system to assess
the performance of our employees, which forms the basis
of our decisions with respect to salary adjustments, bonuses
and promotions. We believe that the above arrangement can
maintain good relationship with our employee.

During the Reporting Period, there were no material non-
compliance regarding employment brought against the Group
or its employees.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

We place emphasis on occupational health and work safety
during the delivery of our services as it is our concern not to
put our employees, our subcontractors and the general public
in hazards. Insurance policies purchased can cover and protect
our employees in the office and construction site. We have also
adopted an occupational health and safety manual as required
by relevant occupational health and safety laws, rules and
regulations under the supervision of our project directors.

Our key occupational health and work safety measures are set
out below:

—  Effective promotion and communication of safety
procedures are maintained through, among others,
establishing safety bulletin and detailed record of accident
statistics, holding regular internal and external safety
meetings, documenting safety measures and issues
identified for each project by preparing safety reports and
training records;

—  We regularly attend safety training organised by the
main contractors of the projects, typically covering safety
procedures for performing different types of work, first-
aid training, safety procedures for emergency and duties
and procedures for reporting hazards, incidents, accidents
and diseases, and good housekeeping of workplaces;
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—  All workers on site, including subcontractors’ employees,
are required to follow the general safety rules adopted
by the main contractor of the relevant project which are
communicated to the workers before they commence
work and posted on prominent notice boards on site.
Workers who breach any such rules will be subject to
internal disciplinary actions;

—  We designate a member of the project team who have
the relevant qualifications as our safety supervisor for each
of our projects. Risk assessments are generally conducted
by the relevant safety supervisor to identify the potential
hazards and accidents and provide suggestion on proper
preventive measures prior to commencement of works;

—  Site inspections are carried out at least once every two
weeks by our project director to ensure strict compliance
with the statutory occupational health and safety laws,
rules and regulations;

—  Specific safety measures in relation to, among others,
emergency, working at height, safe operation of
machinery and reporting of hazards and accidents are
communicated with workers and documented in details.

During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of
work-related injuries.. There were no non-compliance cases
noted in relation to laws and regulations for health and safety.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of training for the
development of our employees as well as our Group. We
provide various types of trainings to our employees, including
those on occupational health and safety in relation to our work
as mentioned in aspect “B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY” in this
Report. Such trainings include our internal training as well as
courses organised by external parties such as the Construction
Industry Council in Hong Kong and the Occupational Safety
and Health Council in Hong Kong. We believe it is a win-win
approach for achieving both employee and corporate goals as
a whole.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group is fully aware that child labour and forced labour
violate fundamental human rights and also pose threat to
sustainable social and economic development. The Group
strictly complies with the Employment Ordinance and other
relevant labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong. The Group
prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour. Employment
contracts and other records, documenting all relevant details
of the employees (including age) are maintained properly for
verification by relevant statutory body upon request.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with
policies and relevant laws and regulations regarding prevention
of child labour or forced labour.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Group works closely with its subcontractors and suppliers
who are committed to high quality, environmental, health and
safety standards. Policies and procedures for selection and
evaluation of subcontractors and suppliers are established for
staff to follow. New subcontractors and suppliers are accessed
with established criteria for comparison purpose. We carefully
evaluate the performance of our subcontractors and suppliers
and select them based on a range of factors that are stated
in the relevant polices and procedures. We maintain a list
of approved subcontractors and suppliers which is updated
according to our assessment of their performance on a
continuous basis.

Thus, we believe there are no significant environmental and
social risks for our management decision on supply chain
management.
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Quality control on projects

The Group is liable for the works carried out by us and our
subcontractors. We ensure that each project is completed in
accordance with the specifications set out for the project. Our
project directors closely monitor the progress of each project to
ensure that our services (i) meet our customer’s requirements;
(i) are completed within the time stipulated in the contract
and the budget allocated for the project; and (iii) comply with
all relevant rules and regulations. Our project directors will
monitor overall work quality and project progress and perform
on-site inspections and supervise site workers regularly. Our
project directors will timely inform our executive Directors of
the project status and any quality issues arising from project
execution.

Materials and consumables

We closely monitor the quality of materials and consumables
we purchase. Our procurement staff will ensure that they
are sourced from our approved list of suppliers. We conduct
quality control checking on HVAC systems and other types
of materials and consumables we procured prior to applying
them for installation to ensure the quality of the materials and
consumables used in our project. Such quality control checking
typically involves: (i) whether the quantity is correct; (i) whether
there is any observable defect; and (iii) whether it functions
normally. Any defective products or products that fall short of
the product specifications would be returned to the suppliers
for replacement. Our customers would also inspect the
materials used by us at work sites and verify the specifications
from time to time.
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Subcontractors and workers

We may be liable to our customers for the performance of
our subcontractors and we may also be liable to any potential
employee compensation claims and personal injuries claims
made by our or our subcontractors’ employees arising from
work injuries that may happen from time to time. In order to
ensure that our subcontractors comply with the contractual
requirements and the relevant laws and regulations, we require
our subcontractors to follow our internal control measures
in relation to quality control, safety and environmental
compliance. Our project directors conduct regular site
inspections to ensure general compliance by our own
workers as well as our subcontractors in quality, safety and
environmental requirements. During project implementation,
our project team regularly meets with our subcontractors
and closely monitors their work progress and performance as
well as their compliance with our safety measures and quality
standards.

In order to achieve high quality in each aspects of our
operation, we rely on our management team which has
extensive industry knowledge and project experience in
the HVAC engineering and services market in Hong Kong.
Our members of senior management have over 20 years of
experience in the HVAC engineering and services market.
Their experience and extensive knowledge in this market
enable our Group to enjoy in-depth understanding of the
local market dynamism and industry practice. Our technical
team, in particular, our project directors who are assisted by a
team of experienced project management staff, have over 10
years of experience in the E&M engineering works industry.
Our Directors and senior management possess substantial
experience, industry insight, technical skills and knowledge
and project management experiences to lead and execute
high quality works for sizeable projects with stringent project
requirements, which serve as our major competitive edge
over other market players, bringing custom knowledge and
commitment to quality have been and will continue to be our
Group’s valuable assets and strive our Group towards greater
success.
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For our quality control measure over our subcontractors
and suppliers, please refer to aspect “B5: SUPPLY CHAIN
MANAGEMENT" in this Report for further details.

During the Reporting Period, there were no disputes between
our Group and our customers in respect of the quality of work
performed by us or our subcontractors.

Data protection

Employees are generally required to follow the confidentiality
clause as stated in the staff handbook and employment
contract, which requesting employees not to disclose any
trade secret or other confidential information concerning the
business or affairs of our Group except for benefit of the Group
with further authorization.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

To ensure operation efficiency and employees’ development
in a fair and honest working environment, the Group has
formulated whistleblowing policy to avoid suspected corruption
and provided channel such as by letter, meeting, email or
phone call for employees to report suspected corruption. If
there are any suspected case related to corruption, employees
are encouraged to report the related cases through the
mentioned channels. All these practical actions not only win the
trust of customers, but also enhance the sense of belonging
and fair play among our employees.

The Group has been in strict compliance with law and
regulation related to anti-corruption. During the Reporting
Period, there was no any legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed
to understanding the needs of the communities in which we
operate. The Group strives to develop long-term relationship
with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to
programmes that have a positive impact on community
development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had organized annual
dinner to share the fruitful result of the Group with our
customers, subcontractors, suppliers and employees in the
amount of approximately HK$160,000.
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG ERABEXZMERATCRE
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GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TERHER -BH —REERBEERER E=4:0] BR
Environmental
B
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: BB
General Disclosure Information on: “Emissions” 40
—RIKE [BERY
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer,
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions,discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
BRABERIORERBEEA - MAKE e BE
B AEREEERYNELSH
(@ BE: &
(b) BTHETABEATZENHEBERNR
RO E RS -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions ~ “Emissions” 42
BERERERAL data. [HER )
R E 2R AR R BE PR -
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) “Emissions” 42

BRENRIEEAL2 and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit [ HER#7 ]
of production volume, per facility).
BEREBAERE AN E) R (WER) %
E(ASESEN  BERMETE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) “Emissions” 41
BARENIEEALS and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit [ HER#7]

of production volume, per facility).

ELEEEEYEE (AWEE) & (1ER)

RE(NEBEEEN  BERBE) -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHER -BH —REERBREERER ;1] BER
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in “Emissions” 41
ARENERA1L tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.  [HE 4]

per unit of production volume, per facility).

FIEEBREEEYRE (UEE) & (1ER)

BE(WMABESSN  BHERMEAE) °
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions “Emissions” and 41
ARENIERALS and results achieved. “Use of Resources”

T LR R B IR B BV HE i M PTG AR - [BER | R & RER
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- “Emissions” 41
FARENIEEALG hazardous wastes are handled, reduction [HEm ]

initiatives and results achieved.

MR IEAERBEEERZYN L  BEE

EEMEBETFRR -
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EEA2: EREA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, “Use of Resources” 43-44
—RiEE including energy, water and other raw [EIREF

materials.

ERFERER(BIERER  KREMERE)

EVIR ©
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by "Use of Resources” 43
BARENIEREA2.1 type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in  [&JR{FH

'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

REDNSISMERER SHEEER(NE - R

gom) BFEE (A THETREREFHE) REE (1

NESESEN  BAERXBEAHE) -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. "Use of Resources” 41
ARENIEREA2.2 per unit of production volume, per facility). [&IREA

BFOKEREE (WASEREM SRR
HE) -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls

TRER EH  —REBERERERER

KPI A2.3
BREMIEEA23

KPI A2.4

BREMIEEA24

KPI A2.5
R EMISEA2.5

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

TR B IR0 A AR ER AT 8 R AT IS AR ©

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

e SR EUGE KR E Rl B EAIERE - A KRR
FHRK M T8 RIS R ©

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

Sk mAAEEM N EE ARG E) Kk (10

) B R -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHEA3 : RRERRRER

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI A3.1
B EMISEA3.1

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.
BIRBEITABRBERARERENERTE
EVIER ©

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

MR RHHRRENRAERNEATE
NERREBERTENTTH -

Section Page
=4 'R
“Use of Resources” 43-44
[&REER]

“Use of Resources” 43
[&REER]

“Use of Resources” 44
[&REER]

“The Environment and 44

Natural Resources”
[RIBERRABIR]
“Emissions” and 40-44

“Use of Resources”

[BE ) K [ &R
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section

TERER EH  —REBERERERER B

Page
BR

Social (Note)
e (M)

Employment and Labour Practices

BREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
FBEB1 : &%

General Disclosure Information on: “Employment”
— R E (&%

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer,

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

BERFMERRE BEIET  TERHK -
BRE - FERE - 20 REBRAREAM
8RB

(@ BR: R

(o) BFHBTABEARENRBEIZR
BB R -

44
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHER -BH —REERBREEXER E: 1] =N
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EmB2: @EHEZE
General Disclosure Information on: "Health and Safety” 45
—RIKE [MfEFER ]
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer,
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BRRMHZE2TERERREREESBEBE
e Er
(@ R &k
(b) BTHETABEATZENHEBAERN
RO E R -
Aspect B3: Development and Training
FEHE B3 : /& K%
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge "Development and 46
—RiEE and skills for discharging duties at work. Training”

Description of training activities.
BRRTEEET TIEFRE N MB R RN
R o B FEE

[ & R g el ]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHER -BH —REERBREERER ;1] BER
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T#A|
General Disclosure Information on: “Labour Standards” 47
—RIKE [45 T%81 ]
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer,
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B IEE TSR M4 TH :
(@ BE: Rk
(b) BTHETABEATENHEBERN
RO EHL -
Operating Practices
&EEN
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : tREHEERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social “Supply Chain 47
—RiEE risks of the supply chain. Management”

ERHEENRERGERBREE -

[ e 8 e 72
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHER -BH —REERBREEXER E: 1] =N
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EmB6 : EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: "Product Responsibility” 48
—RIKE [EmEE]
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer,
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labeling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
BRMREERMBRBNERELS  BE -
SERFILBREEUARER T AH
(@ R &k
(b) BTHETABEATZENHEBAERN
RO E R -
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EEB7: RES
General Disclosure Information on: “Anti-Corruption” 50
—RIKE [R&E5]

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer,

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRI 1R - BFFREREM
(@ BEK: R

(o) BFHBTABEARENRBEIZR
BRI E R -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEEHE BEH —REERBREARER ;1] =N
Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BB : £ ERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to “Community Investment” 50
— R E understand the needs of the communities HEREE]

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
EENRBERTHREEMTHREEZEMN
BREEBEHEE R RFRABOR

Note: Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are  [f{sf : 1R4% 8 QI 4727 - ANEF R ESUEZEE
recommended disclosures only. BESHEER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of
corporate governance to maximize operational efficiency, corporate
values and shareholder returns. The Company has adopted and
applied the principals of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The Company will continue to upgrade internal
control system, strengthen risk control management and reinforce
the corporate governance structure.

The Company has complied with the code provisions and, where
appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding
the compliance with the Model Code. All Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tung (Chairman)

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Chau

Mr. TANG Chi Chiu (resigned on 9 April 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson
Mr. LAU Yu Ching
Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson

The Board's composition demonstrates a balance of core competence
with regard to the business of the Group so as to provide effective
leadership and the requisite expertise to the Group. The executive
Directors and senior management of the Company have extensive
management experience in the Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 21 of this annual
report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience
and qualifications.
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Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Group, is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the
overall management of the business, including establishing and
overseeing the Group’s strategic development, business plans’
financial objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes the
responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group’s business to the executive Directors and members of senior
management.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be segregated.

The two positions are held separately by two individuals to ensure
their respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tung (“Mr. Tony Cheung”) is the chairman
of the Board and Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Chau (“Mr. Gary Cheung”)
is the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Tony Cheung is
in charge of the management of the Board and strategic planning
of the Group. Mr. Gary Cheung is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Company considered
that the division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer is clearly established.

Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other occasions
when warranted by circumstances. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Board held two meetings. Notice for regular
Board meetings are given to each Director at least fourteen days
prior to the meeting whereby the Directors can put forward their
proposed items into the agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board
papers are then circulated to the Directors three days before the
Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code provision A.2.7
of the Listing Rules, the chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present (the
“Chairman and Non-executive Directors Meeting”). During the
year, one Chairman and Non-executive Directors Meeting was held.
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Number of meetings and Director’s attendance
Details of the Directors’ attendance at the meetings of the Board,
the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the Chairman and Non-executive Directors Meeting
held during the year are set out below:

Audit Remuneration

ERABREBHERER
EENFAMBITNESS BEEXZES ¥
MWEEe REZEGRIFEIFNTESES
EEOLFEBREIOT

Chairman and
Nomination Non-executive

Board Committee Committee Committee Directors
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
FEH
ENEES FMzEg REZE8 FHTES
EZE8R =E ] 26 26 2L
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tung SRIT I LA 2/2 N/A N A N/A N N/A 3 7
Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Chau RITIE & 22 N/A 7N B N/A i N/A TE N/A NE R
Mr. TANG Chi Chiu HESLE 2/2 N/A N A N/A i N/A i N/A i A
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson & 83#85%4 212 313 7 17 ”
Mr. LAU Yu Ching BIAESE 22 33 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson MRt 4 22 33 i 17 17
Relationship amongst Directors EECENBE

Save for (i) Mr. Tony Cheung is the brother of Mr. Gary Cheung
and (i) on 12 March 2018, Mr. Tony Cheung and Mr. Gary Cheung
entered into the concert party deed to acknowledge and confirm,
among other things, that they are parties acting in concert; the
Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

Independence of Independent non-executive
Directors

In determining the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the Board follows the guidelines as set out in the Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and concluded that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

B () SR T i S5 A AR ST RS AR MY IR S R (i) e =
T-NF=ZA+=-H RTBEERKRITKE
BRI BT AL RE AR RER (B
RERB)RER—HITHALI EFEXE
ZEWI|PH - 5 RESXHMEKRHH
FAR -

BAFATES
BUFATEFTREEEMEH - REAQFH
ABERAA =02 EX (BEBIIIHR
TER)RAELB=FRrRRBFRELRE
RERERET K-

BAFHNTESNE LM

REEBIIFNTESTNB L MRN EF28
e EmARAIE 313 EMESINES - RAFE
BESBUIFATESRELTRUFEII13KE
BHHNFEBLIEHER YR BB EILIEHR
TESH/BIAL -
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Each Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction package to ensure that he understands the business and
operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of his responsibility
and obligation under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are kept informed on the developments of the
statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes in the business
markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil their responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Continuing briefings and professional development
for Directors will be arranged by the Company when considered
necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, according to the records
provided by the Directors, the individual training record of each
Director received for the year is summarised below:

EEREERERE

SEEELE EARESDENRBZ -
HULBRES RN TRASENEL REE -
AR ETRARAHEERE TORERE
fE -

EERENMEAEREEFENSHERIALRE
EMSHNEE KM ERETT LR R
HEEERE THBEREE - ARFERR
RULBERRERESLHBRMENERERTE
) o

BE_T-\F+-_A=+t—BLFE RE
E=RHMRE  SEERFARIOERE
FIFCEBENT

Attending training
courses/seminars/
reading materials
relevant to the
director’s duties

HEREERSE

BBENEZIERER

Mg BEMH

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tung sRT A& v
Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Chau SR ITIKSE A v/
Mr. TANG Chi Chiu B &Sk & v
Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson iR\ LA 4
Mr. LAU Yu Ching R E A 4
Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson EMFREA 4

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) in June 2018 (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
The term of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Members of
the Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

ExZEE

EZen T \FRARUERZZES (&
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%8 ((REEE8 ) (nHESE8E)) -
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RERAEITREESAEREER LANEE
BATREABER  UBRBBUEXER -
ERBARERE -
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Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. LAU Yu Ching (Chairman)
Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson
Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson

All members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors who possess sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise and relevant experience to fulfil their duties.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of communication
between the Directors, the external auditors and the internal
auditors with regards to their duties relating to financial and other
reporting, internal controls, external and internal audits and assisting
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing independent
review and supervision of financial reporting, by satisfying itself as to
the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, and as to the
adequacy of the external and internal audits.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held, inter
alia, to review the 2018 annual results and the 2018 interim results
of the Group. The attendance records are set out under the section
headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this
report.

Remuneration Committee
The current members of the Remuneration Committee are:

Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson (Chairman)
Mr. LAU Yu Ching
Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board in relation to the
remuneration packages and benefits of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company to ensure the relevant individuals
are fairly rewarded in light of their contribution to the Company
with reference to their performance, and that they receive suitable
incentives to maintain high standards of performance and to
improve the Group’s and their own performance. In connection
with the review of the remuneration package, no Director shall be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held, inter alias, to review the Company’s
remuneration policies, remuneration structure and remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the Company.
The attendance records are set out under the section headed
“Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.
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Remuneration paid to senior management
Remuneration paid to senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 by band are as follows:

XN TFEREEABSNTMH
BE-—Z-\F+-A=+—HLFE X
TARFRIGRERABNFHBELT -

Number of staff

ET#A
HK$nil — HK$ 1,000,000 T L2 1,000,000 7% 7T 2
Nomination Committee RELE®
The current members of the Nomination Committee are; RALZEZHERKEBRE
Mr. LAW Chung Lam, Nelson (Chairman) BERSTE (LE)
Mr. PANG Kam Fai, Dickson )
Mr. LAU Yu Ching 2I¥S IE S

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for, amongst other
things, (i) reviewing the Board's diversity policy and the measurable
objectives set by the Board for implementing the Board's diversity
policy annually, and making recommendations to the Board on
any proposed changes to the Board according to the Company’s
corporate strategy; (ii) making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable to be
qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors annually; and (v) deciding
whether or not a Director is able to and has adequately carried out
his duties as a Director.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy setting out the
approach to the diversification of Board members since 2018. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirement of the Company’s business. All Board appointment
will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regards for the
benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held, inter alias, to review the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and to consider,
nominate and recommend the appointment and re- appointment of
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out
in D.3 of the CG Code including (i) the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance; (ii) monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct applicable to the
employees of the Company and the Directors; and (iv) reviewing
compliance of the Company with the CG Code and the disclosure in
this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and that of the results and
cash flows in the relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them
consistently in accordance with appropriate International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and the
related interpretations, and made adjustments and estimates are
prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the Shareholders are
set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on
pages 69 to 76 of this annual report.

EEEHE
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Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year, the Company’s external auditor, KPMG, services
provided to the Company and the respective fee paid were:

BB BN &
1 D RIS ERAK BRAT R 55 L 6D A
AADRRENRYERESEBRAS

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FEx

Audit of annual consolidated financial statements EZFEREWBEHRE 1,200
Other services include the reporting accountant’s Hitn R (BERABERAR
work in connection with the initial public offering RAR KA B R IR = 5T AD T1E)

of the Company 2,510

3,710

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lo Wan Man has been appointed as the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 9 April 2019,
subsequent to Mr. Tang Chi Chiu’s resignation as the Company
Secretary on the same date.

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by the
Board, is responsible in supporting the Board for ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on governance matters and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group’s affairs.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company Secretary
had duly complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Group recognises Shareholder’s rights in exercising control
proportionate to their equity ownership. As one of the measures to
safeguard Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at the Shareholder's meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of Director(s), for Shareholder’s consideration
and voting. All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meeting will
be voted by way of poll, which is conducted and scrutinised by the
Company’s share registrar. Poll results are announced and posted on
the website of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written request to the Board or the secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specify in
such request; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the submission of such request. If within twenty-one days of
such submission the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
Shareholder(s) may do so in the same manner.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email for the attention of the secretary of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a written notice signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of
his intention to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company
or at the share registrar of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such written notice(s) are given,
shall be at least seven days and that (if the written notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such written
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.
Accordingly, if a Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting of the Company wishes to propose a person
for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she can deposit
a signed written notice of the intention to propose a person for
election as a Director and a signed written notice by that person of
his/her willingness to be elected together with his/her particulars
(such as qualification and experience) and information as required
to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head
office of the Company at Room 1908, 19th Floor, Cheung Fung
Industrial Building, Nos. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong or at the share registrar of the Company,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting, and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company (in both English and Chinese)
is available on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. There is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of risk management and internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls
of financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The
Board should ensure that review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems has been conducted
at least annually.

The Group maintains its internal audit function with the assistance
of the Audit Committee and the management of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has conducted
a review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group with the assistance of the Audit
Committee and the management of the Company. The Board is
satisfied that, based on the information provided and on its own
observation, the present risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the nature and size of the
Group’s operations and business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Man Shun Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man Shun
Group (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 77 to 148, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

FRREFXER
RREZFAEDRMARBIERAE  RRYHE
BRAHGAMBRREAEENER - %FF
BN ERMELGAMBREABENERER
BRiE R TERAEFFREHBLER

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Contract accounting estimates
BREHEE

FREE A EEX G BE2(0) K 2(0) AR HiE4

Refer to accounting policies 2(h) and 2(p) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
HRELSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNERNNEEEREER

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of air-
conditioning installation services in Hong Kong totaling
HK$164 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
HE-_T—)/\F+-A=+—RHILFE  E5H
REBHGRERBEALTERBOBAGER
164,000,000 7 7T ©

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the cost-to-cost method based on the contract
costs to date as a percentage of total forecast costs.
Contract costs are recognised when work is performed,
together with any provisions for expected contract
losses.

EHRWATIERKARLOLE - RS RIS KK AME
BMIEHAN AN B D LR RZE T ER o & QK ARE
TIRRFERERE B BN EREBRER -

The recognition of revenue and profit therefore relies
on management’s estimate of the final outcome of

each contract, which involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting

the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract
variations, claims and liquidated and ascertained
damages, in estimating the amount of expected losses
and in assessing the ability of the Group to deliver
services according to the agreed timetable.

At - BRBA RGN KBEREGRTZESONR
BER R RIEHEREEHE  FREEAE
TR - HENEE RERETEEFELGE -
HETTREEE R - UREH R SERERE R ERRE
IR REMEES

Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
estimates included the following:

BABFEROET AT ETHERRF B

e assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the contract revenue recognition processes;

o  FHEHERWAERRIZHME NP EIERE
B B VER N

e  discussing with management the performance of
contracts in progress during the year, on a sample
basis, and challenging the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the forecasts for contract
revenue and contract costs, including estimated
costs to completion, the recognition of variation
orders and the adequacy of contingency provisions,
and the assessment of potential liquidated and
ascertained damages for contracts, by obtaining
and evaluating relevant information in connection
the assumptions adopted, including contract
agreements and subcontracts, correspondence
with customers regarding contract variations and
claims and by considering historical outcomes for
similar contracts and industry norms;

o FEBHSKATHEMKABRKXEENER (B
BRWERDBELN BEEFEBANEHRR
EH@) ASEBERBRUSHNELER R
TRER - U NERE IR B F NETT
FEXNNETER  WHEASHRARELN
B ERAR AR LT RRERIRLER - 815
HET TR - ERENEE  IABRBNR
RMEEHANEEETHEENTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

AREFZEE @

Contract accounting estimates (continued)
EHEsHEs ()

BRI E R EE 2T BE 2(h) K 2(0) A K it 4

Refer to accounting policies 2(h) and 2(p) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
REELSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNERNAEEERSEE

We identified contract accounting estimates as a

key audit matter because the estimation of the total
contract revenue and total costs to complete contracts
is inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement and estimation and because
errors in forecast of contract revenue and contract costs
could result in a material variance in the amount of profit
or loss recognised from contracts to date and, therefore,
in current period.
BAEEOSTRIETAERERER  REAMR
ARANBAREHTREXNRIRGFAEFLTEHE - B
AEELHERNEIREHE MM ARBARERE
AEHORARAKKATREGEEESRIEAERE
ABARGAERNEREEEREAER -

Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
estimates included the following: (continued)

BT EAOSA BT ETHEREFRE  (B)

e  obtaining a detailed breakdown of the total
estimated costs to completion for all contracts
in progress during the year and comparing,
on a sample basis, actual costs incurred to the
reporting date and future cost estimates with
agreements, certifications or correspondence
with subcontractors and suppliers and other
documentation referred to by management in its
assessment of the estimated costs to completion;

o HSFAMAEITRA NG TR A AT
BRA AAMBESTAEEEREDELNE
BAARRARKRERMG BB kHERD
W% - RESGBH - BEEEEAEF TR
2RI HR it 0 B SR VELEER

e  for all projects in progress at the reporting
date, challenging the assumptions and critical
judgements made by management by comparing
the key terms and conditions in the assessments
with contract agreements with customers and
by comparing the estimated contract completion
time with the Group’s updated progress report or
correspondence from customers;

o SMEAWNAMBETPEAEMS  BBLERN
AHEE P A KRR 2R RY - S8
HEraTREE BEEBSMEERSEH
BERBAFLE  MEEERBELNRERE
RAERIREE &

e comparing the contract revenue recognised for
contracts in progress during the year, on a sample
basis, with reference to the certifications from the
surveyors appointed by the customer, discussing
with management for any significant difference;

o UHEFXBFERETHEOERNS LUK
ANEREREFZREANEMAOBEELER I
HEBEMNREIMNERER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Contract accounting estimates (continued)

BREFEE (8)

BRI E R EIE BT BE 2(0) K 2(0) A K A5t 4

AREZEE @

Refer to accounting policies 2(h) and 2(p) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
REELSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNERNNEEERSEE

Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
estimates included the following: (continued)

BARFEEOSTEFETOEREFBRE  (B)

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to observe
the progress of individual contracts, discussing
with site personnel the status of each projects

and evaluating whether the project progress was
consistent with the Group’s financial accounting
records;

T A BMARE  EMERERN S ONEE -
I B3R5 A B 7 m & B 7E B Ak e R TR IR B
EEH BRENVBERHES —

performing a retrospective review of contracts
completed during the current year by comparing
the final outcome of the contracts with previous
budgets made for those contracts to assess the
reliability of the management’s forecasting process;
and

MBEE N RRERBEAERZZSLIEL
MTREELLE - HARFRE TR A LEITEIR
mEr ARHEERERARIZA A L &

inspecting a sample of contract agreements with
customers and subcontractors to identify key terms
and conditions, including the contract period, the
contract sum, the scope of work, and evaluating
whether these key terms and conditions had been
appropriately reflected in the total estimated
revenue and costs to complete in the forecast of
the outcome of the contracts.
BMEREFPRDBEI LG BEEAR - A
BRI ER L IGRT (BEEOH a0 -
TEEE) - WA Z SR IGER GG 2R
B RN G K4 RIDR B b ET U A R TERK A
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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BIEEE (k) BRAR ZB-N\FFH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & #Z BiEfsR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 183 1% Bi kTR &

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Ling Tak.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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BIEEE (2R BRAT ZB-N\FER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeERmRHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BZ—F—NF+ZA=1—HIFE(LETIIT)

Revenue A 4 163,629 125,846
Cost of services Pl 75 B AR (110,529) (74,120)
Gross profit EX 53,100 51,726
Other income N 5 2,411 826
Administrative expenses THRZ (20,982) (19,624)
Listing expenses WX (15,772) (3,872)
Finance costs B FS AR 7R 6(a) (455) (322)
Profit before taxation BRFi A A 6 18,302 28,734
Income tax T8 7(a) (5,721) (5,330)

Profit and total comprehensive income FREAR MK EEE

for the year 12,581 23,404
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRER GBAL) 10

- Basis —HR 1.45 3.12

- Diluted —#% 1.45 3.12

The notes on pages 83 to 148 form part of these financial $ 83X 148 B MK AR AN I RE — 29 -
statements. Details of dividend payable to the equity shareholders B4 3 FI R FE T R A Bl AE SRR AL B 1B
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in &P HI&F 22(b) °

Note 22(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e RN R

As at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZFE-NEFZA=+—HLETLIT)

Non-current assets kRBEE

Plantand equipment ~  #&R&ES LI 1012 1,592
Current assets RBEE

Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b e WG IE 13 35,960 40,825
Contract assets BHEE 14(a) 30,835 29,194
Amounts due from directors JEUE E 38 15 - 14,673
Pledged bank deposits 2HMRITER 16(d) 1,880 -
Cash at bank and in hand R R FRES 16(a) 107,391 1,838
S 176,066 ¢ 86,530
Current liabilities RBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 N E b JEA 5RIR 17 13,007 11,070
Contract liabilities aHaE 14(b) 918 1,707
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERNBES 18 1,143 25,581
Obligations under finance leases e e AR 19 223 327
Tax payable JEA R IR 20(a) 922 724
... 16,213 . 39,409
Net current assets RBEETFE 159,853 47,121




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BIEEE (FR) BR AT

= A,
=8

—E-N\FER

BRI R

As at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB-NF+ZA=1+—HETIT)

Non-current liabilities REBEE

Obligations under finance leases b & M S R 19 75 298
Deferred tax liabilities RETHIERE 20(b) 184 238
. 259 ] 536
Net assets EEFE 160,606 48,177
Capital and reserves EAXR#E 22

Share capital A& 10,000 —*
Reserves & 150,606 48,177
Total equity R 160,606 48,177

* The balance represents amount less than $1,000.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2019.

Cheung Yuen Tung
RILE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 83 to 148 form part of these financial

statements.

* o EBRAEA1,00087T ¢

BEEGR_ZE-NAF=ZRA-TLBHHLERKRE

T -

Cheung Yuen Chau

F8IE 148 BN K AT IETHRE — 2D °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F—NF+ZA=1—HIFFE (LETIT)

Share Merger Share Retained Total
capital reserve premium earnings equity

ES AHHRE R iaE REBN REAE

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r r r r r
(Note 22(d)(ii))  (Note 22(d)(i))
(st 22d)i)  (H¥aE22(d)(3))

At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t5-F-H 2 2,010 - 22,761 24,773
Changes in equity for2017:  —B-tFEZEH
Profit and total comprehensive  EREFI R 2 E
income for the year ke - - - 23,404 23,404
Avrising from reorganisation HEMRES 22(c)i) ) - 2 - -
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZE-tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+t-BEK
—E-\§-A-H - 2,010 2 46,165 48,177
Changes in equity for2018: ~ —B-NERHEH
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFI k2 A
income for the year ek - - - 12,581 12,581
Dividend paid BERKRE 2(b) - - - (18,000) (18,000)
Issue of ordinary shares upon RERRHRRE
initial public offering BTEER 22(c)iv) 2,500 - 115,348 - 117,848
Issue of ordinary shares upon REABETERR
capitalisation 22(c)(v) 7,500 - (7,500) - -
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NF
+ZA=1-H 10,000 2,010 107,850 40,746 160,606
*  The balance represents amount less than $1,000. * REERRBEUL 1,000 T o

The notes on pages 83 to 148 form part of these financial ££83& 148 B MW sE R AN FEREK — D
statements.



BIEEE (2R BRAT ZB-N\FER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HelRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BZ—F—NF+ZA=1—HIFE(LETIIT)

Operating activities REEE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &4 Fr15,” (Fr /)
B 16(b) 21,588 (16,109)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBNEH (5,577) (11,947)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFHHREB(FA)
operating activities REFE 16,011 (28,056)
Investing activities RETH
Payment for purchase of plant and BERREBHENER
equipment (146) (117)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and 2SR B TS SR IE
equipment 50 919
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BB ITER (B M),
deposits oA (1,880) 1,252
Interest received 2 YRS 1,025 5
Net cash (used in)/generated from BRETES (FTA) BB
investing activities REFE (951) 2,059
Financing activities REEE
Payments for listing expenses TN ETRAX (10,960) (1,192)
Proceeds from new bank loans FrILRITE RS A - 11,696
Repayments of bank loans BEERITER (12,662) (2,646)
Capital element of finance lease paid ENRMEHRSHESH
BARE D (327) (1,168)
Interest element of finance lease paid EN@EREREN
MEBH (22) (57)
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts paid B fRITERRIBEZ FE (433) (265)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares RE R AR
upon initial public offering TR SRIE 130,000 -
Advances to directors BEEETN - (1,107)
Dividend paid ERARE (3,327) -
Net cash generated from METHAESREFRE
financing activities 102,269 5,261
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &5 HHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-—FE—NF+ A= —HILFELETIT)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBLEFYEM

cash equivalent (R2) #8 117,329 (20,736)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRERREEEY

beginning of the year (10,814) 9,922
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRESRBRESEEY

end of the year 16(a) 106,515 (10,814)

The notes on pages 83 to 148 form part of these financial 2583& 148 B WM sE @AM FEREK — B0
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Man Shun Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of installation of heat,
ventilation and air-conditioning system (the “HVAC Business”)
in Hong Kong. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 11 April 2017 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
11 July 2018 (the “Listing”).

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 16 June
2017 (the “Reorganisation”), the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of
the Company dated 28 June 2018 (the “Prospectus”). The
Group’s business was carried out by the operating subsidiaries
(the “Operating Subsidiaries”), namely Man Tung Air-
Conditioning E&M Limited (“Man Tung AC E&M"), Man Tung
Air-Conditioning Works Limited (“Man Tung AC Works")
and Shun Tung Engineering Company Limited (“Shun Tung”),
all of which were under the joint control of Mr. Cheung Yuen
Tung and Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau (the “Cheung’s Family” or
the “Controlling Shareholders”).

As the Reorganisation primarily involved only inserting a
newly formed entity with no substantive operations as the
new holding company between the Cheung’s Family and the
Operating Subsidiaries, there has been no change in the ultimate
control and there were no substantive changes in business and
operations of the companies now comprising the Group.

As the control is not transitory and, consequently, there was a
continuation of risks and benefits to the Cheung’s Family, the
Reorganisation is considered to be a restructuring of entities
and common control. The consolidated financial statements
before the completion of the Reorganisation have been
prepared using the merger basis of accounting as if the Group
has always been in existence.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 include the
results of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries as
if the Reorganisation was completed at 1 January 2017. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2017 has been prepared to present the financial
position of the Company and its subsidiaries as if the entities now
comprising the Group had been consolidated as at that date.

AR e B IS s R MY AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4& B iR RMI s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(8 BHEB - 1A ETIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
complies with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are set out in Note 2.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & BF #E sk R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(o)

statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group'’s
financial statements:

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Except for the early adoption of HKFRS 15, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, since the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-
financial items. As a result of the changes in the Group’s
accounting policies, as explained below, HKFRS 9 was
adopted without restating any comparative information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b= Fat ) 1)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

€),

(b)

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair
value through profit or loss (“"FVPL"). These
supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-to maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets measured
at FVPL. The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business model under which
the financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are not separated
from the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a
whole is assessed for classification.

The measurement categories for all financial assets
remain the same and the carrying amount of all
financial assets at 1 January 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of HKFRSO.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
remain the same. The carrying amounts for all
financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS
39 with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL") model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises expected credit losses (“ECLs")
earlier than under the "incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & BF #E sk R 5T

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) Credit losses (continued)

(c)

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
Note 2(h)).

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy
for accounting for credit losses, see respective
accounting policy Notes 2(g)(i) and (ii).

The adoption of the ECL requirement of HKFRS
9 resulted in an insignificant impact to the loss
allowances of the Group’s financial assets.

Transition

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. There is no
significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and financial result upon initial application at 1
January 2018.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B B E 3855 - 41 /

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

2 EARETTEHE@
(d) KB F

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is included in these financial
statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing these financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)):

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of
5 years or
unexpired

terms of lease

—  Furniture and fixtures 5 years
—  Computer and office equipment 5 years
—  Motor vehicles 4 years

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

()

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are recognised as plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in Note 2(e). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 2(g)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs
on the following items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
Note 2(h)).

Financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls of fixed-rate
financial assets such as trade and other
receivables and contract assets are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & BF #E sk R 5T

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 2(p)(ii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

2 ERETTEHE@
(9) GEFEREERE @
() ERTALEBEBRASY

and contract assets (continued) BE(E)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A B=—F—-F—H—H
(continued) JEE 3 FH I R ()

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. trade and other receivables). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it is becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

—  significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & BF #E sk R 5T

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate, where the effect of discounting
was material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets
shared similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which were
assessed for impairment collectively were
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised
to the extent that it did not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

(continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group was
satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those assets
directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in profit or
loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that plant and equipment may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & BF #E sk R 5T

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4& B iR RMI s

(Expressed in Hong Kong do//ars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5 F it BH5) » 1L ETTST)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 2(p)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see Note 2(i)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 2(p)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see Note 2(i)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see Note 2(p)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see Note 2(h)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(g)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

(k)

)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2(g)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2(a)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(m) Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B ZB BB - L E TS T)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4= & BF #E sk R 5T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enabled at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

47 |

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received from
the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the
net cost of continuing with the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a product or service
to a customer. “Control” refers to the customer’s ability
to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from an asset.

(i) Contract revenue

Revenue of products and services transferred over
time is recognised progressively based on the
contract costs incurred to date as a percentage of
total forecast costs to depict the transfer of control
of the goods or services to the customer. The Group
recognises revenue over time only if it can reasonably
measure its progress toward complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation. However, if the
Group cannot reasonably measure the outcome but
expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, then it recognises revenue
to the extent of the costs incurred.

Revenue of products transferred at a point in time
is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point
in time when the Group transfers control over the
products to the customer.

Incremental cost of obtaining a contract is capitalised
if the Group expects to recover those costs, unless
the amortisation period for such costs would be one
year or less. Costs that will be incurred regardless of
whether the contract is obtained are expensed as
they are incurred.

The Group presents a contract liability or a contract
asset in its consolidated statement of financial
position when either party to the contract has
performed. The Group performs by transferring
goods or services to the customer, and the customer
performs by paying consideration to the Group.

Any unconditional rights to consideration are
presented separately as “Trade receivables”.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(q) Borrowing costs

(r)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Related parties (continued)
(2) (continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (r)(1).

(vii) A person identified in (r)(1)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in these financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

= NS o ==
(PR AH at AT 7N )

t}‘/_//;‘s\ =i L

2 ERETTEHE@

(r)

(s)

BT ()
2) (&)

ivv —HEBRE=ZTEREN
BERR -ME—EER
SR EBNBENT -

v EERASELELEE
ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’\]% S Bl IE B F &

R H)BERUE AT 8

(vi) EEX _EXMO)FTERIA
TSR KRS -

(vil) =32 (r)(1)(0) BT &8 Bl A £ %
ERBEAZENLUBZ
B (HZEBNERAA)
TEEEEKE -

(viii) ZERBKEMBRENT
ﬁﬁf@% CIEEA TN
SESARRER‘RERER
/\E\HlﬁAz

—BATHIRSTERAEETEX
BATHRBZBALTRELRER
ETEBERNOKEKS -

TE2

REDHRE D R B R AP BHEK

NERNEHE - DRELERD LK
AHEARESAES LBUERR
EHRH‘TARESSTREREN
B 7S BRI AR R o

HHBHREME - KIEDFEBBL
WEESBREERMRBIEE - &
ERENE  FRPEUSER AR
DHEMMRERRBNTEAREE
i%;ij%él’lli,%f??ﬁ*ﬁ@ TE\'J%MEK
REDETEETAHE - WERIFEE
KE’JZ%%%-& GSR=psbu K%B%T?i%
BIE#ITAE -

107



108

Man Shun Group (Holdings) Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B ISR &R M s

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES
Estimation uncertainty
The key assumption concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

(b)

Loss allowances on trade receivables, retention
receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables, retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires
the use of the lifetime ECL allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the loss allowance
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of reporting period. Management reassesses the
loss allowance at each balance sheet date.

Revenue recognition

As explained in Note 2(p), revenue and profit recognition
on a project is dependent on management’s estimation of
the progress of the satisfaction of performance obligations
of a construction contract over time, measured by actual
contract costs incurred to date to estimate total contract
costs for the contract. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the construction activity
undertaken by the Group, the Group reviews and revises
the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs and
variation order, prepared for each construction contract
as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction costs
are prepared by management on the basis of quotations
from time to time provided by the major subcontractors,
suppliers and vendors involved and the experience of
management. In order to keep the budget accurate and
up-to-date, management conducts periodic reviews of
the budgeted construction costs and revises the budgeted
construction costs as appropriate.

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
contract revenue, contract costs and variation work which
may have an impact on percentage of completion of the
construction contracts and the corresponding profit taken.
In addition, actual outcome in terms of total revenue or
costs may be higher or lower than estimation at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustments to
the amounts recorded to date.

=T A B R A E
st TRERE

TXEMEBARNEZRR

SR BRE

HARNEATRERARNEMERRIR
HEEEARAREEE MM BHFENE
ENBBENRAEFLEARE -

(a) ESEUNE BURREZRE

()

HEEEREE

L5 RNEOR - BRIRE S REH
BEMS AREREFBYBHRSEE
155 9 55 B AR TE SR A L 3 0ARTHER TR
HMEEBHRRE MEF2ERMAE
B 5 MR IA R ok A B B E & &5 18
Bim  cRMEEBRBEDHENLE
# e & EHE R R RREH - &
SERBEASEBEES BHEMS
AR N R B R Y ATRE ME (A T - IO
HzEREMERGEEBRBEGN
WABBRERHLE EEENEE
BREMEBERE-

WA TR

AANEEE 2(p) PR RE - 1B B A A K
/ﬁnﬁcuﬁﬁ HX/%EAEIiFET EXHTFﬁW
BESHNNBARTETHKEEME
et BREEDLZBRELOEE
ERNERE KRG RS KK
R EET 2 o RIBARE B YA B
R AEEAEREETHNEE -

AEBER A KETR RS RERTH
BRER %’Jﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂé%’ﬂﬂ&)\“ﬁ%’ﬂﬁ

ARTIREFTESHT -EEERE
2 HTE H EI’JIEE’VP]F‘? HEELE
FARRENFREREEENLE
RBEEIEKNATEE - B EE LK
TEE  EIRE T R MERT (10
BH)BEKATEE -

EEAEORA BHRAREETE

FERERAE ST ERER
KR SERK LE ) S AR FE I A o SN - L
BUWAKAT S - R B AIE 8RS
SHEAE  BRAERTESNHER
WE R AT - e BN R K E
RHIUA K g ) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received or
receivable from the service contracts by the Group to external
customers. The Group’s operation is solely derived from HVAC
Business in Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017. For the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the chief operating decision maker
reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group
as a whole prepared based on same accounting policy set
out in Note 2(p). Accordingly, the Group has only one single
operating segment and no further discrete financial information
nor analysis of this single segment is presented.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by timing of revenue recognition and type of service are
as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15

4

(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

WA R HE R

I AFE AN 5 B 5 AR 756 49 B U 3k FE W BT
BEFEFREMNATE AEEZEEZFRAE
EZE-)\FRZE—+F+-A=1+—
AIEFEREBEEREBTRAER -BE
BROREERRFTMEME TBEEREKE
EMAEBIREH 20 TEAER &5
RREMBEEB LB - At - &K
SEEF—HEE—KEDI  WAEET
LB — D IR — S B B ER S AT o

(a) WA#H 7
B AERER MRS ENS S E
FEHWRARNBAMAED DT :

BB BHEERE15 R EHE
R EF &R KA

Disaggregated by timing of REABRBEEAD

revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time RENEHERNEDR 12,903 14,809
Services transferred over time BE RF R 8 % 1) AR 75 150,726 111,037

163,629 125,846

Disaggregated by type of service 1% AR 7% 38 5l 48
Installation services only F RS 122,917 87,216
Installation services with HVAC ZRRBGERBZERES

systems procurement R 40,712 38,630

163,629 125,846
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 WARDEERE @

(continued)

(b) Transaction price allocated to the (b) 7MERGBHNETINRZE
remaining performance obligations
The following tables include revenue expected to TEREERNR_ZBE-—NFR_Z—
be recognised in the future related to performance FTA=+T—RAKREK (EEH DK
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as FERK) B B #) & (T 1 78 B A% 5O oK SR AR
at 31 December 2018 and 2017. REUA o
$'000
Tr
2018 —B-N\F
Remaining performance obligations expected FHMRBZEUT AHPILEFER
to be satisfied during the year ending: ERHNFEBRBRNEL:
31 December 2019 —F— 7L¢‘|' HA=+—H~ 122,793
31 December 2020 “ZE-ZF+-A=+—H 69,092
After 31 December 2020 “EZF+_A=+—HRE 38,687
230,572
2017 Bt
Remaining performance obligations expected EHMRBZLU T AHILEEER
to be satisfied during the year ending: ERMESBENESE:
31 December 2018 —ET-NFt=-A=t—H 151,342
31 December 2019 —T-hAF+-A=t—H 33,354
After 31 December 2019 —E-AFE+A=+—H% 4,394
189,090
(c) Geographical information (c) HEER
The Company is an investment holding company and the KRR AREERAR MAEERFESL
principal place of the Group's operation is in Hong Kong. BB ATE - B EBEE BV BREED
For the purpose of segment information disclosures under EHWELIHELMS AEBRES
HKFRS 8, the Group regarded Hong Kong as its place of BEEMMBHE, -
domicile.
No geographical information is presented as the Group is EEE/\KE BETERETENERBEHER -
principally engaged in HVAC business in Hong Kong. A 2 51 @ E R o
(d) Information about major customers d) EEETEEFNESR
The Group's customer base includes four (2017: five) NREFBHEZERAENS (- — 4
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% AR X SR AEBBINAEIEI10%HE
of the Group’s revenue. In 2018, revenue from HVAC FoR—ZT—N\F KEHEZEREHIE
Business with these customers amounted to $154,382,000 IC T RS AU A A 154,382,000 T (= F
(2017: $125,846,000). Details of concentration of credit — £ 1125, 846 0007—1:) cHERERE

risk arising from these customers are set out in Note 23(a). HEREERB BN E23)
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(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

5 OTHER INCOME

5 HA

Bank interest income HRITHEHA 1,025 5
Repair and other service income 18 R E At AR U 925 806
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment S M BE N SR O W e 25 -
Sundry income HMIBUA 436 15

2,411 826

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

6 FRB A SR

BR B AT A D FORR DA N B IRIR 2B

(a) Finance costs (a) BFFERA
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 274 86
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZFIE 159 179
Finance charges on obligations under BEREFERD
finance lease mEEM 22 57
455 322
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) ETIRK(BIEEEHS)
emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITARHMET 25,517 27,061
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB FURIRET B
retirement plan 855 1,175
26,372 28,236
(c) Other items () HftEHE
Depreciation e 701 795
Operating lease charges: minimum KEHERY - &IK
leases payments HERH 420 420
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B & 1,423 180
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEMSE RRENERE - 125
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(B = BBl - U ETTITR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 ZEBEBEREMEZEREARTP
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND HY BT 15 B¢
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) e BEREMBEERSERFHOR
and other comprehensive income represents: 1848

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

B E-FRREHR

Provision for the year F NG 5,663 4,755
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFEBEIRS
prior years (FRERR ) 112 (79)
5,775 4,676
Deferred tax EERL IR
Origination and reversal of temporary TR EENEEREE
differences (54) 654
5,721 5,330

In March 2018, the Hong Kong SAR Government
introduced a two-tiered profits tax rate regime by
enacting the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 3)
Ordinance 2018 (the “Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered
profits tax rate regime, the first $2 million of assessable
profits of qualifying corporations is taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rate regime
(2017: a single tax rate of 16.5% was applied).

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 has
also taken into account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax payable for the
year of assessment 2017-18. The Group is eligible for the
maximum reduction of $30,000 for each business (2017:
a maximum reduction of $20,000 was granted for the
year of assessment 2016-17 and was taken into account
in calculating the provision for 2017).

N-ZE—-NE=F FBERNTK
5 B R/ 2018 E TS (18 5])
(B 35%) 150 ([ E1])) S| AFE
MEH - REBEFNSHEBES  5F
%%l%ummmm%%MmﬂE
8.25% MTH R EAT - ERERTHF
B3 16.5% M T R EAF o

At - BE-_FT—-N\F+-_A=1+—
RIEFENEBNGSHEGDRE
MEBRMAEHHE (T —EF &K

FAE—FiE16.5%) °

ZE- N\EFEEBNNESRBEI
MEBRBITHRERFR=_F—t
FEZZ - \FRRFENEMNE
BHRRETS% AEBESLESER
TE & %[ % 30,0007 (ZE—+F -
R RNEE_ET—+EBEHRE
E& %W %20,0007%  RitE_Z
—tFEEREREEEBEN) -
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(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 FeBEaRHEMREREKRSD

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND Ry P58 ()

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) rEFiMTERERRRFENS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: R MERRAT -

Profit before taxation B 5 A & 18,302 28,734
National tax on profit before taxation FRE AR A 2 & T8 2,886 4,741
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR HMBHAS R G2 2,783 648
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFEREIR

(ERFERE ) 112 (79)
Statutory tax concession EEMBER (60) (40)
Others HAh - 60

Actual tax expense ERBIAL H 5,721 5,330
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(B BB S - LB T)

8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 8 EEXM<E
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEEE R FHEHIZE383(1) 1§ & 7 (3
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEENRER RO 2H0HEENES
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions
i
ERER BIK
EEHe ENER bE L
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
2018 —E-\E
Chairman EY:
Mr. Cheung Yuen Tung RITBLE 0] - 1,976 18 1,994
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau R AL 0] - 1,790 18 1,808
Mr. Tang Chi Chiu BE8LE (i), (i) - 600 18 618
Independent non-executive directors B TTEE
Mr. Law Chung Lam BEREE (i) 92 - - 2
Mr. Pang Kam Fai yHmELE (i) 92 - - 2
Mr. Lau Yu Ching ARERE (i) 92 - - 2

270 4,366 54 4,690
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8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = B BH5) - GLAETHT)

8 EEME®wm

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions
B
EEHe AR
$'000 $'000
T T
2017 —E-tf§
Chairman E:4
Mr. Cheung Yuen Tung RITBLE 0] - 2,524 18 2,542
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau SRITI S A (i) - 1,910 18 1,928
Mr. Tang Chi Chiu bk it (i), Gi) - 600 18 618
- 5,034 54 5,088

Notes:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
emoluments of Mr. Cheung Yuen Tung, Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau
and Mr. Tang Chi Chiu were paid by the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang Chi Chiu was employed by the Company on 3 January
2017 as chief financial officer and was appointed as executive
director on 27 February 2018, his emoluments disclosed above
included those for services rendered by him as the chief financial
officer.

Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 8 June 2018.

No director received any emoluments from the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year. No arrangement
under a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HE-_ZE—NEFk=_FE—+tF+=A
Z+—BLFEE  RUBEE  RITME
EREEEENMESHAARARGHER
A& o

HEHEER-_F—LF-A=ZHER
RARFERYBRE BN T N\F_
At LHREZERANTES  mA Lt
WENNe S EREN KR EMmRERR
e -

R-E-NFRANBEZERBILI
HMITES -

FRREEFAARBURERDHE
1 75 00 BB 7 2 18 3 50 o B 7 % (8 By 1) 22
SRFRBEREE - FR - HUEEFHE
SABREEMNHE R -
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(B BB S - LB T)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2017: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2017: two) individuals are as follows:

REFMAL
EEEBREHFMATES =R (ZF
— £ SR) EROFHIMN I8 R -
ESMA (ZF—LF  mR) ALOHH
BEMT

Salaries and other benefits e RHMmEF 1,281 1,056
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRIREFIF 2R 36 36
1,317 1,092

The emoluments of the two (2017: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

ME(CE—tF WB)ZRSHMALH
HFENTHER

2018 2017
—E2-N\fF —B—tF

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

Nil to $1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T

AE A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCI

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$12,581,000 (2017: $23,404,000) and the weighted average
of 868,493,151 (2017: 750,000,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 is calculated based on the assumption that 750,000,000
shares were in issue at the beginning of the years, taking into
consideration the effect of the capitalisation issue as detailed in
Notes 1 and 22(c).

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares
Ordinary shares in issue immediately before

BIEEE (2R BRAT ZB-N\FER

AL STATEMENTS 4GS B ISR R MIsE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

10 8RER
EREXBANDIBERRAERRR
FE {5 3% 12,581,000 (Z & —+ 4 :
23,404,00070) R FAE BEITE BRI
e 19 81868,493,151 & (& —+ 4 ¢
750,000,000 st & - BE_ZT—N\F K
—E—tF+-A=t+—HILFENEE
TEBRMNEFHRDERFIE BT
750,000,000 A% 17 B9 R &% I 48 =& B M 7%
1 R220QFFMMERNME BT EETE

8
=Fme

Number of shares

RO E

2018
= B

2017
—E-tF

BEERMEFIIH

ERARABD LA

listing of the Company’s shares BEBITEBER 750,000,000 750,000,000
Effects of share issued under initial public RIEE R AFBRIEITRD

offering Eof-Z 118,493,151 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 21T % 8 % hn i F 19 25

in issue 868,493,151 750,000,000

The amount of dilutive earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue.

HE-_ZT-—N\FERZE—tF+=A
=+ —HIEFE BRAEETEALBE
HEMENEEITEBR  eREER
Tz EegRERRZFMER -
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(B BB S - LB T)

11 HBERRE

11 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer
Leasehold  Furniture and and office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
EREK
RENEEE BRRRE BAERME RE b
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+5-A—H 1,203 205 246 6,338 7,992
Additions hE - - 84 33 17
Disposals HeE (455) (84) 87) (3,271) (3,897)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t%
tT-A=t+-H 748 121 23 3,100 4212
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$-A—H 748 121 243 3,100 4212
Additions hE - - 16 130 146
Disposals HeE - - - (103) (103)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
TZA=1-AH 748 121 259 3,127 4,255

Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:

At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+4%-A-H
469 106 11 3,99 4,678

Charge for the year ERRAX 150 2% 34 587 795
Written back on disposal RLERER (360) (80) (54) (2,359) (2,853)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%
e TCASf-B W9 % 9 2200 2620
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F-A—H 259 50 91 2,220 2,620
Charge for the year ERRAX 150 2 46 481 701
Written back on disposal RLERER - - - (78) (78)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
e ToAStCAR L SO - SO 263 3243
Net book value: FHFE:
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t%

+-A=+-H 489 7 152 880 1,592
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\%

T-A=t+-H 339 47 122 504 1,012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Assets held under finance leases

Included in the motor vehicles, there are vehicles with net
book value amounted to $353,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: $710,000) classified as being held under finance leases.
The Group leases motor vehicles under finance leases expiring
from 2 to 5 years. At the end of the lease term the Group has
the option to purchase the leased vehicles at a price deemed
to be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

No additions to motor vehicles financed by new finance leases
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

BIEEE (2R BRAT ZB-N\FER

RO ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1"
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(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

HeEs R A @
REREHERENEE
R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—8 EEFE
353,0007C (= Z —+ 4 : 710,000 7T) HY
AESEARERMEHERE - AEER
BREHEARNTERMERSFME
HA o MABHAAE RAS - REE A RIBLAEE
BEEBEAMEARE MEHRESER
RIS o

B2 - N\FkZ2—tF+=A
=t+—HULFE BENTREEERE
K)/5E o

REBLRKNRE
TRESIEVEFEEEME HAER
B EOM B RS - RS HFIHEN -
TR AR 2R R B 2 AR o

Proportion of ownership interest

Place and Particulars of Group's
date of issued and effective
Name of Company incorporation paid-up capital interest
aE fi B 32 ERTRAR rEE
ARARB WHRAH RAHE  BRER
Man Tung AC E&M Hong Kong/ 1,000,000 100%
9 April 2008 ordinary shares
BRLAKE B/ 1,000,000 %
ZTTNE LRk
MANE
Man Tung AC Works Hong Kong/ 1,000,000 100%
19 November 1996 ordinary shares
BRLRTIE B/ 1,000,000 %
—NARE 31
+—R+hAB
Shun Tung Hong Kong/ 10,000 100%
6 November 1998 ordinary shares
s B/ 10,000 %
—AANF 31T

+—ARA

ek 4§34

Held by the
Company
LN
BA

Held by the
subsidiary
L) PN
=20)

Principal activity

100%  HVAC Business

100%  HVAC Business

100%  HVAC Business
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(B BB S - LB T)

13 EZREMERRE

Trade receivables B SR FIE 20,757 27,359
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %% + B A &

H fth fE M TR IE 511 1,402

Retention receivables (Note 14) FEURE & (HaE14) 14,692 12,064

35,960 40,825

At 31 December 2018, the amounts expected to be recovered
after more than one year is $6,241,000 (2017: $4,343,000).
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Ageing analysis

At of the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables (which are included in trade and other receivables),
based on the date of payment certificate and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

R-ZT—N\E+-_A=+—8 EHIP
—F & U Bl A FIE A56,241,0007T (= F
—-+4F :14,343,0007T) cFTBEEME S K
H fth B U SR IE TE A AT R — R R B Bk RE AR
BRXY -

AR 2

RIWERR - REREFEE R RS D RGN
BRERBRENESRUNEGIAES R
Ho Aty & YR IR) RO BRER AT AR T -

Within 1 month 1ME AR 20,519 26,314
1 to 3 months 12318A 238 1,029
Over 3 months 3ME A+ - 16

20,757 27,359

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 45 days from the date of
payment certificate. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
are set out in Note 23(a).

BHRWFIBEARAEEBHLEN30E
45 AANEIH - BEAREEEBRNE—
FHIBEN KR 23(@) ©
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14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

14 SHNEEREGHERE
(a) EHEE

Contract assets EHEE
Arising from performance under EXBRBRITLXEEN
installation contracts 30,835 29,194

Receivables from contracts with customers 7 7 B 75 5 &5 #E BI| 55 15 8%
within the scope of HKFRS 15, whichare ~ SERREEF A L
included in “Trade and other receivables”  [EUWZIE (Gt ATE 5 &
(Note 13) H A U RIA D) (M5t 13) 35,449 39,423

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract assets recognised are as follows:

Installation contracts

The Group's installation contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
installation period once milestones are reached. These
payment schedules prevent the build-up of significant
contract assets. The Group typically agrees to a retention
period ranging from 12-month period to 24-month period
for 5% of the contract value. This amount is included in
the retention receivables until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment
is conditional on the Group’s work satisfactorily passing
inspection. When the retention period is due and the right
to the retention is unconditional, this amount is included
in the trade receivables.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous periods is $6,138,000 (2017:$3,704,000), mainly
due to the changes in estimate of the stage of completion
of certain installation contracts.

As at 31 December 2018, retentions held by customer
for contract work was approximately $6,241,000 (2017:
$4,343,000) and have been included in trade and other
receivables (see Note 13).

HERRANWEEZBRBREEN
— R T

ZREH
AEEREAHNBRENLERNHE
KON RER (—E#iRE
R mENFARGLEERERA
WEE - AKE-—RABEMS%NAE
WEERAERIBNREAZ24EAN
REH o i AR B R UL B AR A 5K
O RE R S AN SR B T A2 52 B B iUl 18
TR Bt ABKRES -
BEEREBMERRBL - WREHEW
i A ER R BR 2 ) AR R A 2 SR AR -
e REETAE SRR -

FARBERRCET (HHBHE
THENETHROBAZER
6,138,000 7T (== —+ 4 : 3,704,000
7o) EEHENE TRERE N5
B Efh e B PR -

R-ZE—NE+_A=+—8 &P
e TI2RE € 46,241,0007T
— T — 4 :4,343,0007T) 2 EFA
B o MEMEWRGTE (RHFE13) -
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(B BB S - LB T)

14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities

14 SHEERGHNEBW@®
(b) EHEE

Contract liabilities EHNERE
Installation contracts ZREHN
— Billings in advance of performance - BB A IE

(918) (1,707)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Installation contracts

When the Group receives a stage payments over the
installation period before the services are performed, this
give rise to contract liabilities, until the revenue recognised
on the contract work exceeds the amount of stage
payment.

Movements in contract liabilities

HERRANABSERNTED
— BT

LEEH

i A 5= B 70 4R 1 BR 75 BT 7 & K B
WES BN AIEEANAE &
ERAHNTRRERNKAEBD H
BE0k v T

BHERENE

Balance at 1 January R—HA—B®&EH (1,707)
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FABRTARTELHBEDN

recognising revenue during the year that WABHRaHNBERD

was included in the contract liabilities at

the beginning of the period 1,672
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of TR IFE BN TEER

billing in advance of installation activities SEHBEEN (883)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—Br4&EH (918)

No billings in advance of performance and instalments
received expected to be recognised as income after more
than one year.

1A B ST B AR 75 I W B HA A R
MR EBHHN —FRERBEA -
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(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

15 AMOUNTS DUE FROM DIRECTORS

The amounts due from directors are as follows:

15 BEIRESERE
R E EFIEMT ¢

—E-N\FER

Mr. Cheung Mr. Cheung
Yuen Tung Yuen Chau
Name of the director RTAEEE RuTEE
Terms of the balance EERIER
— duration and repayment terms -FHIRERER Repayable on Repayable on
demand demand
BEREER BEKEE
—interest rate -B= Interest-free Interest-free
8 B
— security — None None
Balance of the outstanding REBLEH
—at 1 January 2017 -RZE—+tF—H—H $ 8,506,000 $ 5,060,000 7T
— at 31 December 2017 and -RZET—+kF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—BRK
—ZE-N\F—A—H § 88040007t $ 5,869,000
—at 31 December 2018 -RZE—N\F $ Nil Nil
+=-A=+—H =T e
Maximum balance outstanding SESEN YA
—during 2017 -RZE—+F $ 15,600,000t $ 5,869,000 7T
—during 2018 -RZE—NF $ 8,804,000t $ 5,869,000 7T
There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any impairment R-ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H #EFE

BERHERZN - IERERFAFELE
mEE #E2—F-N\F+=-_A=+—H
LHFE - BRESHRDEHEN -

made against the amounts as at 31 December 2017. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the amounts due from
directors were fully settled.

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

16 BERRSEEYUARAEMER
EREEH

() RERBREEEBYESE:

Cash in hand FHEES 12 12
Deposits with banks with maturity R=1{E A R B IR1T 75K

less than three months 107,379 1,826
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 107,391 1,838
Secured bank overdrafts (Note 18) BRMIRITES (HFE18) (876) (12,652)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FeHemERTH

consolidated cash flow statement BeMREEEY 106,515 (10,814)
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(B BB S - LB T)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RERBESESEYUREME
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EREER @)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) BRBIATEF B & RS, (Fr
cash generated from/(used in) operations: B)BRENYER :

Profit before taxation B 5 A 18,302 28,734
Adjustments for: MU THIEELFE

Depreciation e 6(c) 701 795

Finance costs B & A AR 6(a) 455 322

Bank interest income FRITH BURA 5 (1,025) (5)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of HE KRR KRB

plant and equipment (Uezk) BB 5/6(c) (25) 125

Operating cash flows before EEERFZHAN

changes in working capital KERERE 18,408 29,971
Decrease/(increase) in trade and g5 K E b e G IE

other receivables S (1 hn) 3,673 (28,319)
Net movement in contract assets A XIEERALAE

and contract liabilities FEE) (2,430) (18,873)
Increase in trade and other E 5 K E bR IE

payables b2 hill 1,937 1,112
Cash generated from/(used in) KEmB /(A Re

operations 21,588 (16,109)
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(B = B BH5) - GLAETHT)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 BERESEBYUREME
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EREER @

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (o BRMEITHFEEEENEHIER

financing activities

Obligations
under
finance
Bank loans leases
BE
RITER HERIE
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
(Note 18) (Note 19)
(P =k 18) (FfFEE19)
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZF—-N\F
—HA—H 12,929 625 13,554
Changes from financing cash flows: BIEHR & HEEH :
Repayments of bank loans BEETER (12,662) - (12,662)
Interest on bank loans paid BfHRITEZFE (274) - (274)
Capital element of finance lease EREHERSH
rentals paid BRI - (327) (327)
Interest element of finance lease BENREREEEN
rentals paid MBS - (22) (22)
Total changes from financing RERSRELE
cash flows @st (12,936) (349) (13,285)
Other changes: Hig s
Finance charges on obligations BEMEAENFE
under finance leases (Note 6(a)) Z A (M7E6(a) - 22 22
Interest on bank loans (Note 6(a)) RITEHFE
(M7t 6(a)) 274 - 274
Totalotherchanges HtE®H#@st 274 2 296
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-—N\#F
+=A=+—H 267 298 565
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(B BB S - LB T)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 B BESEEYUREME
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EREER @
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (o BRMETHFEEEENEHIER
financing activities (continued) (#8)

Obligations

under

finance

Bank loans leases

&

RITEXR HERE
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
(Note 18) (Note 19)
(P £ 18) (BfFzE19)

At 1 January 2017 R=ZZB—+tfF
—HA—H 3,879 1,793 5,672
Changes from financing cash flows: E&EREREZH
Proceeds from new bank loans FEIRITENRME
IA 11,696 - 11,696
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (2,646) - (2,646)
Interest on bank loans paid ERITE A E (86) - (86)
Capital element of finance lease ENRMERERSH
rentals paid BARER S - (1,168) (1,168)
Interest element of finance lease ENMERERSH
rentals paid MEHBH - (57) (57)
Total changes from financing MERENELH
cash flows #Et 8,964 (1,225) 7,739
Other changes: Hihs# g
Finance charges on obligations BEREAENFE
under finance leases (Note 6(a)) 2 (5 6(a)) - 57 57
Interest on bank loans (Note 6(a)) RITE A B
(FFzE6(a)) 86 - 86
Totalotherchanges A& ®#st 8 5 143
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—t#F
+=-—HA=+—H 12,929 625 13,554
(d) Pledged bank deposits (d) EERBRITER
The balance represents deposits pledged to secure the ERIERERRITELENEORE
issuance of performance bonds by bank. eMEROFR -
(e) Major non-cash transaction (e) TEIRERS
On 30 April 2018, interim dividend of $18,000,000 was RZE-—NFHEA=ZF+TH BF
declared, in which $14,673,000 was off-set with the & 7 HA A% 218,000,000 7T - E o
amounts due from directors and the remaining balance of 14,673,000 7T B2 jE I ZE = 3018 5 FE 3K
$3,327,000 was settled by cash. $H 0 8 T 45 £43,327,000 7T B A B

EER -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = B BH5) - GLAETHT)

17 EZREMENRE

Trade payables B 5N RIE 4,178 6,017
Accrued subcontracting costs FEET D B 3,914 541
Other payables and accruals Hfth 5 IE R EETE A 4,915 4,512

13,007 11,070

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

FIAE 5 R AR FIARRR —FRE

o

B

RI|BEHR  REZBHEAONE S EN
RIERIRE DT

Within 1 month 1MEARA 1,842 3,280
1 to 2 months 1Z&21@A 771 2,398
2 to 3 months 2Z31@A 219 339
Over 3 months 3ME A 1,346 -

4,178 6,017

18 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS
At 31 December 2018, the bank loans and overdrafts were
secured as follows:

18 |MITERREX
R-Z—NF+-A=+—0 FHEAR
TERREZMT -

Secured bank overdrafts (Note 16(a)) BEFIETES (ML 163)) 876 12,652
Secured bank loans BEMIFITER 267 12,929
1,143 25,581

All of the bank loans and overdrafts are expected to be settled
within one year or on demand.

FBRTERRBEXBHER —FARKRE
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18 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued) 18 SRITERREX #)

At 31 December 2017, the banking facilities (including bank
loans and overdrafts and performance bonds) granted to the
Group were secured by:

(i) Personal guarantee provided by a director of the
Company;

(i)  Personal properties owned by a director of the Company;
and

(iii) Investment properties held by Most Harvest Development
Limited, Rich Home Properties Limited and World Million
Development Limited. All of them are related companies
of the Company.

At 31 December 2018, the securities set out in items (i) to (iii)
above were released. The banking facilities (including bank
loans and overdrafts and performance bonds) granted to the
Group were secured by the corporate guarantee provided by
the Company and the pledged bank deposits of $1,880,000
(2017: $Nil).

Notwithstanding the specified repayment schedules as stated
in the facilities letters (“specific repayment terms”) which
allow the loans to be repaid over a period of more than one
year, these banking facilities granted to the Group include a
clause that gives the banks the unconditional rights to call the
bank loans at any time (“repayment on demand clause”).
The bank loans subject to the repayment on demand clause
amounted to $267,000 as at 31 December 2018 were classified
as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position (2017: $12,929,000).

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 KEHE
ERBETRE (BERTERLEEI AR
BHRZFS) AT S EEEA

() ARA—BEZAREEMBEAEZR:

(i) ARA—BEZMHERANEADE
54

(i) WEERRBAERAR BREXARA
ARBEEERARABMAFANE
BWE - 2R FH /AR EH B

A o

R-ZE—N\F+_A=1+—8 "  EXFE()
ZE(NEMIHIEEE THER A EBER
MIRTTRE (BRETEREEIUAERE
HRBES) UARRIATIREN A GER K
2 R 1717 711,880,000 T (— T —+
F To) B -

BEBREHGMISEERSHER ((BE
BRH ) AHEFN—F U LBEREE
WAEEEENZERITHERSR TR
ITEAGHREN AR ZREERITERD
BR(TRERERERK]) - R=ZZT—N\F
TZA=T—H XBRRNIREREEEK
HERITE R A267,000C (ZE—+4F:
12,929,0007T) ' MERE M EARA KA S
HMAERBAE-
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(B = B BH5) - GLAETHT)

19 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 19 MEHERE
At the end of reporting period, the Group had obligations RBERR  AEEETEHENREEE
under finance leases repayable as follows: EPEWT -

20

2018 2017
—E-N\f —E-tF
Present value Present value
of the minimum  Total minimum of the minimum  Total minimum

lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments

BIERE BIERE BERE BRERE
HRAE DEVE] HRAE e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tr Fr
Within 1 year 1ER 223 231 327 349
After 1 year but within 2 years 1E/E2ER 75 75 223 230
After 2 years but within 5years 2 {B5ER - - 75 76
... 5o o 298 . 306
298 306 625 655
Less: Total future interest expenses  Jt : 7 2K 8 F % 888 (®) (30)
Present value of lease obligations ~ fAE&IER & 298 625
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 SREMBRRKBAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (a) ZATHRRRNERAR B -

position represents:

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for FRNBEBFESTHEE
the year 5,663 4,755
Provisional Profits Tax paid ENEHFEH (4,741) (4,031)

922 724
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(B BB S - LB T)

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 MEMBRARVFAER @
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised (b) ERRELEHBEEE &E
Movement of deferred tax assets/liabilities EEHELE BEZE
The component of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised RERE SRR R ERERIETTE (8
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E)/BBEEKIS RERFRLE
movements during the year are as follows: T
Temporary  Depreciation Unrealised
difference allowances profit
arising from in excess  arising from
revenue of related intra-group
recognition  depreciation  transactions
£ER
ERER A BHE#H REERS
mEER wEHN MEER
EREH mERE REEHF
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Tr
At 1 January 2017 NZE—+F
—HA—H (197) 185 (404) (416)
Charged to profitor loss B8z 197 53 404 654

At 31 December 2017 NZZT—+F

+=-A=+—H - 238 - 238
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F

—A—H - 238 - 238
Credited to profitorloss st AJEzS - (54) - (54)

At 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F

+-—A=+—~H - 184 - 184
There were no material unrecognised deferred tax assets RZE-—NF+ZA=+—HEZ=
and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December Z—+HF+A=+—H #HESEX
2017. ARERBELHBEEEREE -
21 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 21 EERAKER
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the REERBESRVIELAESHEGOR
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident EEBEBGORE T ZENES R —
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the Hg Gl AEesTE ([BESTTE) -5
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF HEER—EHBEIRTIAEENTE
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered MICGRRETE - RIBRESFE - EEZ R
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer HEEXBAREEMBRATSY% T
and its employees are each required to make contributions to IR - AT A AR A 30,000 708 £R -
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a FrEIH AN R E -

cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes of the Company’s
individual components of (deficits)/equity between the

beginning and the end of year are set out below:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

22 EXKf#EE
(a) AN D EE
RNEE R ERSER DD EY
REREHZEOHERN G
HBEE - AATRENEE KDY
B (RS AL) / HE 26 9 1B B 48 A% 28 5
PEEHIMT

Company FAAY-T|
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium loss
[ B0 5 8 RitEE
$000 $000 $000
T Tr Tr
(Note 22 (c)) (Note 22 (d)(i))
(MEE22(c)  (B¥=E22(d)(i))
At 11 April 2017 RZE—+t5F
(date of incorporation) mE+—H
(G2l ava=E:)) —* - - —*
Loss for the period HRER - - (88) (88)
Issuance of ordinary shares ~ #1TE @R 22 (0)(i) —* - - —*
Arising from reorganisation R E4E 4+ 22 ()(ii) - - 2
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t5F
+ZA=+—H —* 2 (88) (86)
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F
—HA—H - 2 (88) (86)
Profit for the year F R - - 2,983 2,983
Dividend paid ERRE 22 (b) - - (18,000) (18,000)
Issue of ordinary shares upon 1A & X2 7 B % K
initial public offering BITEAER 22 (0iv) 2,500 115,348 - 117,848
Issue of ordinary shares upon FA & &AL RS %47
capitalisation LmR 22 (c)(v) 7,500 (7,500) - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\&F
+=ZRA=+—H 10,000 107,850 (15,105) 102,745

* The balances represent amount less than $1,000.

* EBRAEL1,000TT °
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 22 EXRK #E @
(b) Dividends (b) B2
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company ER AR AR R EGFERRE
attributable to the year

(9]

Interim dividend declared and paid of R KR EAR S
$90,000 per share (2017:$Nil) /% 90,000 7T
—T—+F:Tx) 18,000 -
The interim dividend was declared and paid before the PHRETRERNE R ERXAFHEA
issuance of ordinary shares upon capitalisation and initial fREF BT E BARATE R KK &
public offering. The directors did not propose the payment ETRBENBEZ_E—N\F+=
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 A=+ —ALEFENREARE (ZF
(2017:$Nil). —EFFL)
Share capital (0 B*&
The Company
N
No. of
shares
ROEE
Authorised ordinary shares of EREEARVITHEE
$0.01 each: EER:
At 11 April 2017 (date of incorporation), RZZE—tFMA+—H
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 (G E) -
“E—+F+ZA=1T—H
R-Z-N\F—-A—H (i 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share BREETRAEM
capital upon Reorganisation (iii) 4,962,000,000 49,620
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+_A=+—H 5,000,000,000 50,000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BER CRTRAR:

At 11 April 2017 (date of incorporation) RZE—+FWA+—H
(s B E) 0] 1 —*
Issue of ordinary shares BITLBR (ii) 199 —#

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H

R-Z-N\F—-A—H 200 -
Issue of ordinary shares upon initial RERARBREETE AR
public offering (iv) 250,000,000 2,500
Issue of ordinary shares upon capitalisation RERMMEBETERR (v) 749,999,800 7,500
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+-_A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000

*  The balances represent amount less than $1,000. * BB HN1,0007T
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Notes:

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at the date of incorporation, the Company had an
initial authorised share capital of $380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of $0.01 each.
On 11 April 2017, one nil-paid share was allotted and
issued.

On 16 June 2017, the Company issued and allotted an
aggregate of 199 ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at
par and credited the one nil-paid share issued on 11 April
2017 as fully paid.

On 8 June 2018, pursuant to the written resolution of the
sole shareholder of the Company, the authorised share
capital of the Company increased from $380,000 divided
into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of $0.01 each
to $50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of par value $0.01 each, by the creation of an additional
4,962,000,000 shares.

On 11 July 2018, 250,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.01
each of the Company were issued at a price of $0.52 upon
initial public offering. On the same date, the Company’s
ordinary shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. The
proceeds of $2,500,000 representing the par value of
the ordinary shares of the Company were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining proceeds of
$127,500,000, before issuing expenses approximately
$12,152,000, were credited to share premium account.

On 11 July 2018, a total of 749,999,800 ordinary shares of
$0.01 each was allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at
par, to the sole shareholder of the Company, Prime Pinnacle
Limited, by way of capitalisation of a sum of $7,499,998
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 BERKf#E @
() A @\
EBRITE A G I TSRS
BRE - ARAAFTAE HRERKRD
TH—ZMREE - A LB A
ARFBBERTHHEMER -

) REMARZBEH K2 HD
&% F MK £380,0007T 0 D A
38,000,000 % & B EI{E0.01 7T Ay
BR-R-—_T—tFWA+—8"
— AR FRAS 1D B B2 R B AT o

iy RZZB—EFRATRE KAH
BT R B A 199 R E AR
FIEB R R AN _-F
—tEFHA T BETHBRARH
Bk B th ABRDIERLR ©

(i) RZE—NEXANB BERX
AEHE-—BRERMNE@MAZE
RABEETERAE BREING R
4,962,000,000 A% % 13 F1 380,000 7T
(% /38,000,000 % & AX (& 0.01 7T
K& 8 %) 4% Z= 50,000,000 T (9D A
5,000,000,000 % & J& M1 0.01 7T HY
Ll

vy R—ZT—N\FLA+—H AQHF
250,000,000 f& & B FI{E 0.01 LAY
BN E X ARBRZSR0.52T
MERET -RB AQEEER
B AT P £ TR © AT48 K78 2,500,000
T(RERAQRRERRAME) B
FFARRQRRIEA - 82 T T8 RE
127,500,000 7T (1B 31T F S 49
12,152,000 7oAT) B FT ARG m B -

vy, RZZE—NFELtA+—H KQF
BEBAEARRKRGEERE AN
7,499,998 JT Ky it BR BA (1) AN 2 7] M —
[% & Prime Pinnacle Limited A 2% & 3%
774 $£749,999,800 % & #% I 1E 0.01
TR EMEABRSIESE /) mAk -
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

()

(i) Share premium
The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to the provisions, if
any, of its memorandum and articles of association
in paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividends is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the aggregate amount
of the excess of the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
shares of the Company exchanged as a part of the
Reorganisation.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to fund its construction business and
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributable reserves

As 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of
the reserves attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, as calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association was $92,833,000
(2017:$Nil).
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group'’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits and trade and other receivables and
contract assets. The Group has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group as
set out in Note 26(b), the Group does not provide any
other guarantee which would expose the Group to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial guarantee at the end of each reporting period is
disclosed in Note 26(b).

Bank deposits

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound
credit ratings and the Group has exposure limit to any
single financial institution. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any of these financial
institutions and counterparties will fail to meet their
obligations.

Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk in
a few customers. In view of their good payment record
and long established relationships with the Group,
management does not consider the Group’s credit risk
to be significant. At the end of the reporting period,
61% (2017: 26%) and 93% (2017: 100%) of the total
trade receivables and contract assets was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed as part of the
acceptance procedures for new construction contracts.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30
to 45 days from the date of payment certificate. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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(B = BBl - U ETTITR)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables,
retention receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases. Loss allowance for the Group’s trade and retention
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December 2018
is insignificant.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see Note 2(g)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018). At 31 December 2017, no impairment was
recognised for trade receivables.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are
as follows:

23 BERERENAFE@E
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Over 3 months past due EHA3E A LA 16
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39(continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance
was necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating subsidiaries within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities as at 31 December 2018 of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at 31 December 2018) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

For bank loans subject to repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the maturity analysis shows the cash outflow based on
expected repayment dates with reference to the schedule
of repayments set out in the banking facilities letters and,
separately, the impact to the timing of the cash outflow if
the lenders were to invoke unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.
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(B BB S - LB T)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 23 B RBREER XX HE @)

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RENE € R (&)
2018
2N\
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRAHRRER
Total More than More than
Carrying  contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
amount at undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
31 December cash flow  ondemand 2 years 5 years
mt=A
St-HBH  ANAER 1FR 150 E 2F0E
REE RERELE HERER BAOR2E BHR5F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr Tr T
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN
| 13,007 13,007 13,007 - -
Bank loans and overdrafts RIBERRES 1,143 1,146 1,146 - -
Finance lease liabilities BEMEARE 298 306 231 75 -
14,448 14,459 14,384 75 -
Adjustments to present cash flows 5% A 25113 &
on bank loans based on lender's X AEFIE
right to demand repayment RERERH
BOEFRS
nE 9 (9) - -

14,450 14,375 75 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = B BH5) - GLAETHT)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 23 BIEREERQFE @
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBE € E R (&)
2017
“E-tF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARHRRER

Total More than More than

Carrying  contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but

amount at undiscounted 1 year or less than less than

31 December cash flow  ondemand 2 years 5 years

mt=A

St-HBH  ANAER 1FR 150E 250 E

REE REREAE HERER BAHR2E BLR5F

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Tr T Tr T T
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN

B 11,070 11,070 11,070 - -

Bank loans and overdrafts RITEFREX 25,581 25,843 25,573 270 -

Finance lease liabilities HEMEARE 625 655 349 230 76

37,276 37,568 36,992 500 76
Adjustments to present cash flows 5% A 2 5113 &
on bank loans based on lender's ~ EFAEFIE
right to demand repayment RERERMN
BIEFRS

nE (262) 8 (270) -

37,306 37,000 230 76

Financial quarantee issued: BEMIBER:

Maximum amount guaranteed EaEREE

(Note 26(h)) (Bt 5% 26(b)) - 3,467 3,467 - -
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(B BB S - LB T)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 23 BiBEREER X FE @

VALUES (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZREK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future FMEREEESRIAENAFESI R
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate RIREMEERT SN RS MESE
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s REE R - REBHNEREREE
interest rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings. RERITEE - HEBFERHOE
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group BESAERERZBeREFNERRAR -
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate EREBEMEENRERNELRH
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) AT () °
below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFEHR
The following table details the interest rate profile of THRANAEBEEN RE D
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting REIFIEBER
period.
2018 2017
—E-N\E ZB-tF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= ERF=
% %
Fixed rate borrowings: EENEEE:
Finance lease liabilities MEMEARE  478%-6.61% 298  4.37%-6.61% 625
Variable rate borrowings: FEANEEE:
Bank overdrafts RITES 4.25%-5.23% 876  4.25%-5.26% 12,652
Bank loans RITER 3.13% 267  3.00%-3.75% 12,929
M 25,581
Total borrowings BERE 1,441 26,206
Fixed rate borrowings as a EEFREEEER
percentage of total borrowing BENBSL 21% 2%
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(9]

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax
by approximately $9,500 (2017: $213,600).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period in respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such changes in
interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis during the year ended 31 December 2017.

(d) Foreign currency risk

(e)

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency
risk as all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

Fair value measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(B BB S - LB T)

24 COMMITMENTS 24 EiE
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZE-N\F+—A=+—8 T HHE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable KEREE TR RKERENREED
as follows: AN

25

Within 1 year 1R 420 210
After 1 year but within 5 years 1% B5F RN 210 -

630 210
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties. AEERZEMENARA - HE—RY
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 years, with an RS AEERENH A GK
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. KEE SIEEAEeEAES -

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 EXBH LI XS

In addition to transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere BRALEHBEHREREMENEENZII R
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the EON AEBFT LA TERBEBZS -

following material related transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEANEH M
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFEEBEASNTM (BIEM
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors ST BRAANRESEZNHNE
as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest paid LtFIOFMERRE TEaFES
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: XATHIFRIB) AT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmER 5,917 6,072

Retirement benefit scheme contributions R8I 5T &1 4 3¢ 90 90
6,007 6,162

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note FaEEEATE IRA] (R

6(b)). 6(b)) °
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(B = B BH5) - GLAETHT)

25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 E XA X Z (@)

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEEBAINRS

Rental expenses paid to a related company A — & BAEE A 5 2 K9

HeMX 420 420
(c) Financing arrangements () MEZH
At 31 December 2018, the Group had the following RZZE-—NE+-_A=+—080 K&
balances with related parties: BB AT @ ek

Amounts due from directors (Note 15) U E E 7B (s 15) - 14,673
(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (d) EEERXZHEN LR
connected transactions EFH 'H:-
The related party transaction in respect of Note 25(b) 3l B 5 25(b) B B8 B 5 22 5 K
above constitutes connected transactions as defined MERXS(ERR LMHRIE14A
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, the B) oM BREBEBRSIERE
transaction is exempt from the disclosure requirement 14A.76(N1EH K 28 G /K F - #a]
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as it is below the de el EmRAE 14ATHHEER

minimis threshold under Rule 14 A.76(1). JE °
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(B BB S - LB T)

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2018, contingent liabilities not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

(a) Performance bonds

26 RAREE
R-ZE—N\F+-_A=1+—8  WENEH
AR ERANTIRBENKAGEDT

(a) BHRESE

Performance bonds given to a customer for &% Z# 1T A £ B B A 7

due and proper performance of projects
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries

FrAGRIRE i T — %
EPHNENRESR

1,880 -

(b) Financial guarantee issued

At 31 December 2017, the Group has issued a single
guarantee in respect of a banking facilities granted by
a bank to Well Crown Investment Limited, a related
company. The Group has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot
be reliably measured using observable market data and
its transaction price was nil. The Group monitors the
conditions that are subject to the guarantee to identify
whether it is probable that a loss has occurred, and
recognises any such losses under guarantees when those
losses can be estimated. The directors of the Company
do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the guarantee. The maximum
liability of the Group at 31 December 2017 under the
guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of the
banking facilities utilised by Well Crown Investment
Limited of $3,467,000.

The outstanding guarantee as set out above was released
by the bank upon listing of shares of the Company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. No outstanding
guarantee was issued at 31 December 2018.

(b) EERHMBER

RZE—+F+-A=+—H K&
EERBRTRBERAREBERES
RABIFEEMIRITRESE HE &
R REE I ERERERTMAELT
WA REABEAFEELRBAEH
RMGHBEA T ELEARES
T o AEBERAZERFENER
ARG AT BE H IR B8 - SR AT (E
HZEEERERERE NEAE
B ARBEBRB NN BRI
RAAEERIER - RZT—tF
+=ZA=+—8 AEERBEHE
RETHNE=AEAESRERR
RAIEEARITRENKREENRIE
3,467,000 7T °

EXFBREERFRRARA RN
FERE X P EAR LT RS SEIRITAR IR » 10
“E-N\F+ZA=+—H Kr&H
W\ EITHOREEER
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(B 5B B5) - 19X ETHT)

N

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27
FINANCIAL POSITION

I

2\ 7 FE T B B 35 R R R

At At

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R=ZZB-—N\F RZZT—t#F

+=A=+-8 +=A=t+-8

Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tx T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RAIMKRE 12 2 2
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b W s I8 301 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N B s 13,036 -
Cash at bank and in hand RN FHRES 93,411 -
106,748 -
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables E M E T FOIR 45 -
Amounts due to shareholders FET R R FRIB - 88
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETHI B A R FUIA 3,960 -
4,005 88
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (86 FE 102,743 (88)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/ (86 FE 102,745 (86)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRH#E
Share capital % < 22(c) 10,000 —*
Reserves i 92,745 (86)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT) R () BE 102,745 (86)

*  The balances represent amount less than $1,000. o BEBRABAIN,0007T
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28

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Prime Pinnacle Limited, which is incorporated in Republic of
Seychelles. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

28

BEERBHRERS

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—8 EFRE
REBNEEZET QAR M&EEZH AR
32 5 M 2L A0 B 5% AX 32 89 Prime Pinnacle
Limited o It BEEW MR HARALTE
AR IS HRE -

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BE-—ZE—-N\E+=-A=1+-—
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS HEFEEEGENRERD
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE CHERE IR &L T B
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 -4

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

BENEPBEHRRTIHEBE  FE S5
REERMZIAEE] - LA RERE
MmARER - F LA RRERBE-F
—N\FtZA=+—HLFERREMA
W FEA LW TE MR AR » ZFEF]
MR RRERE NI EAREE
FAHYIER -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
RTIBE#HH 2%
BmME T BEEN

HKFRS 16, Leases BERMBWELNE 165  HE 1 January 2019

—E-NhF—H—H

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax B (AR BERERELZES) 1 January 2019

treatments RIEE 239 - BrEH T T —E-NhF—H—H
)z FE

EEMBREEN T —HFE
—TEFRAMNFEENRE

1 January 2019
—E-AF—H—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have an insignificant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impact upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standard is initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ending 30
June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standard is
initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(f), currently the Group enters into
leases arrangement as the lessee and classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish
between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in
a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. HKFRS
16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

As disclosed in Note 24, at 31 December 2018 the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amounted to $630,000 for properties,
part of which is payable between 1 and 5 years after the
reporting date. Therefore the Group does not expect this new
requirement will have a significant impact on the Group upon
adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from opening lease commitments on adoption
of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
the effects of discounting.

The Group expects that the transition adjustments to be made
upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material.
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